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REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS
2008 CEO MESSAGE
DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS			
With world oil prices in a free fall, prices of real estate
all around the world have followed suit. Despite the
predicament facing the real estate industry in North
America, Alberta’s industrial real estate remained
strong throughout the year and Imperial’s portfolio
of industrial properties has continued to outperform
many other jurisdictions. Our roster of tenants is
predominantly made up of large international,
national and large regional corporations which will
bode well for our future revenue generation.
With a red hot economy that produced almost
zero vacancies, the lowest unemployment and the
highest paid wages, costs in all aspects of real estate
development have surpassed all expectations.
The price of existing buildings were at par and did at
times exceed the cost of new construction. Operating
in such an environment is challenging as is the
process of matching a tenant to a specific location and
building. This year our real estate division generated
a perfect match and completed the development
of a 2 acre site in Alberta’s Heartland. This high
visibility property located along Highway 15 in Fort
Saskatchewan, Alberta will become a flagship branch
of Rental Services Corporation (RSC), a multinational
company headquartered in Houston, Texas.

Our newest build to suit facility in southeast
Edmonton is now complete and occupancy has taken
place. First mortgage financing in the amount of
$7.5 million has been finalized and advanced. A rose
among the thorns along 72A Avenue in Edmonton,
the PowerComm Building is a jewel in the Imperial
Equities’ portfolio of properties. Its architecture and
its features are state of the art and award winning!
The strategy of diversifiying Imperial Equities to
generate revenues from more than just real estate
is fast becoming a sound one. Our pharmaceutical
distribution business, Imperial Distributors
Canada Inc. (IDCI), was acquired in February 2006.
The company was new and was just beginning to
generate revenues. We immediately began to build
on the fundamentals of this business including
developing a business plan and establishing
relationships throughout the supply chain. The
implementation of new software has enabled us
to compete with the biggest of our competitors,
particularly as it relates to the e-commerce business.
Adherence to our business plan has proved to be the
road map to IDCI’s success and we are happy to report
revenues have grown from $1.2 million in 2006 to
$10.4 million in 2008 and projected to be substantially
greater in 2009.
continued over
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As with the diversity in our portfolio we must also
diversify the talent on our Board of Directors. In
May, 2008 Dr. Dennis Modry was appointed to the
Board of Imperial Equities. Dr. Modry is a leading
cardiovascular and thoracic surgeon who implemented
Western Canada’s first heart and lung transplant
program. Dr. Modry’s medical expertise will be
invaluable as we continue to grow our pharmaceutical
distribution division.
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The share price in Imperial Equities has never
reflected the real value of its assets. For the most part,
shares in publically traded real estate companies are
cheaper to buy than it is to buy the real estate asset.
To demonstarate our belief in the value of Imperial
Equities’ shares, on May 23rd 2008, the Company
received approval from the TSX Venture Exchange to
make a Normal Course Issuer Bid. IEI may repurchase
up to 455,317 of its common shares which represents
approximately 5% of the issued and outstanding
common shares of the Company. The purchases
are made through the facilities of the TSX Venture
Exchange during the period of June 16, 2008 through
to June 15, 2009.
As always, we would like to thank our shareholders
for their ongoing support and do invite you to
contact any of the directors with comments,
concerns or investment opportunities.

Sine Chadi
CEO & Chairman of the Board
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MANAGEMENT’S
DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

MD&A FOR THE YEAR ENDING
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008
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AS AT DECEMBER 17, 2008

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(“MD&A”) is intended to provide readers with an
explanation of the performance of Imperial Equities
Inc. and its subsidiary Imperial Distributors Canada
Inc. This MD&A should be read in conjunction with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2008. Imperial
Equities Inc. trades on the TSX Venture Exchange
under the symbol “IEI’. Additional information on the
Company may be obtained by visiting www.sedar.com.

In our report to shareholders, management may talk
about our current economy and express opinions on
the market value of our properties, future interest rates
and capitalization rates that we might experience or
speculate on future market conditions. This forwardlooking information is based on management’s current
assessment of market conditions based on their
expertise as well as the opinions of other professionals
in this industry. While management considers these
statements to be reasonably optimistic and favorable,
the opinions and estimates of future trends and market
values are subject to risk and uncertainties. Readers
are encouraged to read the risk factors identified in
Note 26 of our audited 2008 consolidated financial
statements. Any forward-looking statements in our
report should not be relied upon as facts, as actual
results may differ from estimates.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT
AND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Management is responsible for the information
contained in this MD&A and is also responsible to
ensure that appropriate procedures and controls
exist internally that will provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of the Company’s financial
reporting and its compliance with Canadian GAAP. In
addition, the Company’s Audit Committee and Board
of Directors provide an oversight role with respect to
all public financial disclosures by the Company and
have reviewed and approved this MD&A and the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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ANNUAL INFORMATION
		 2008

2007

2006

Total Revenue

$ 13,820,074

$ 9,957,267		

$

4,409,242

Net (Loss) Earnings

$

$ 2,050,907		

$

1,108,199

(42,857)

(Loss) earnings per share – basic cents		

(01)		

23		

13

(Loss) earnings per share – diluted cents		

(01)		

22		

12

Total Assets

$ 35,489,302

$ 26,619,064		

$ 24,381,663

Total Long-term Financial Liabilities*

$ 18,467,415

$ 13,331,586

$

987,777

*(Does not include the current portion of long-term financial liabilities)

SIGNIFICANT FACTORS
AFFECTING YEAR OVER
YEAR CHANGES
TOTAL REVENUE
Revenues overall have increased by $3,862,807.
The revenue derived from real estate has increased
$349,281 this year. This increase was largely due to
the addition of two properties to our portfolio and
an increase in rental rates on lease renewals. The
largest gain was in pharmaceutical sales which have
increased from $6,937,463 to $10,450,210. A larger
customer base as well as volume increases with
existing customers has resulted in increased sales of
$3,512,747 or 51% for the year ending September 30,
2008.
In 2007, revenues from real estate had decreased
$220,220 as a result of the sale of two revenue
producing properties in June. Revenues from the
sale of pharmaceuticals increased by $5,766,863
over 2006 the result of a full year of operations in
comparison to the 7.5 months of operations in 2006.
Also contributing to the increase was an aggressive
sales approach to increase customer specific sales, and
increase the customer base.

NET EARNINGS
Net earnings in 2008 are significantly lower than 2007
as there were no capital gains on the sales of properties
to report. Normal property operations in the real estate
segment reflect net earnings of $877,849 and the
pharmaceutical segment reported a net loss of $420,677.
A further breakdown is shown in Note 20 of the
consolidated financial statements.
Net earnings in 2007 were positively affected by the gain
on the sale of two properties in the amount of $2,946,968
before tax. Also impacting earnings were the losses for
the pharmaceutical company of $307,983 before tax
recoveries and a provision of $345,591. This provision
relates to a bad debt with an Edmonton based retail
pharmacy. Management continues to seek recovery of this
debt under a lawsuit.

TOTAL ASSETS
The total assets of the Company increased 33% this
year with an increase in the pharmaceutical segment of
$959,510 which can be attributed to higher inventory
and accounts receivable currently at $1,945,629 (2007$1,460,372; 2006-$749,074). The real estate segment
increased revenue producing properties by $8,901,415
net of amortization with the completion of the build to
suit project started in 2007 and a new acquisition in
April 2008.
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In June of 2007, the Company sold two revenue
producing properties decreasing its book value of real
estate assets by approximately $2,300,000. The decrease
was partially offset by the development of a build to
suit project on 7.66 acres of our existing land bank. At
September 30, 2007 there were accumulated building
costs of $360,000 with additional projected costs to
completion of approximately $6,155,000. The sale of
the two properties in 2007 contributed to the levels
of cash the company had at year end which increased
the total assets. Increases in the level of inventory for
pharmaceuticals also contributed $1,261,354 towards
the increase in the asset base at September 2007.
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Three of the mortgages are up for renewal in 2009. Values of these three properties are
estimated at $14.1 million.
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TOTAL LONG-TERM FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
In 2008 the Company completed the development and
redevelopment of two revenue producing properties.
Once completed, a total of $9 million of long term
financing was placed as a first charge. At September
30, 2008 Imperial Equities had a total of 11 mortgages
payable amounting to $21,176,145. Three of these
mortgages are up for renewal in 2009 with the total
mortgage balance shown as current liabilities.
The decrease in long-term financial liabilities in 2006
relates to mortgages that were up for renewal in the early
part of fiscal 2007. The portion of mortgages payable
that are due in the next twelve months are recorded as
current liabilities and therefore excluded from the total
long-term liabilities. The actual mortgage balances vary
little between 2006 and 2007.

OVERALL PERFORMANCE
HIGHLIGHTS-2008
Funds from operations before changes
in non-cash operating balances,

(Millions)

generated $.07 per share compared to ($.05) at 2007

Imperial’s asset base continues to grow
and has increased 33% this year

The build to suit project started in 2007
was completed and began generating revenues for
the Company in July 2008.

The Company secures its first revenue
producing property in Alberta’s Heartland.

Imperial has evaluated its revenue
producing properties to reflect current market
conditions with extremely favorable results
showing unrecognized equity of $44,065,240
based on management’s estimate of fair value
and the current balance of mortgages.

Aggressive growth in the sales of
pharmaceuticals was achieved increasing IDCI’s
sales 51% this year.

Market value was estimated by management using the actual three year average future
revenue stream per property, less a 2% vacancy rate and capitalization rates varying from
6.5% to 7%. This calculation was used on all of the revenue producing properties with
the exception of our Oliver Crossing property and the Capital Business Park. The market
values of these two properties are based on the total square footage of land multiplied by
a dollar value per square foot. Vacant land was valued using management’s research of
similar vacant land that has sold recently, or available for sale. Capitalization rates take
into account many factors including but not limited to; the location of the property, the size
of the land parcel, site coverage, the quality and strength of tenant, whether lease rates are
over or under current market rates, demand for the type and use of the property, the age
of the building, any special use characteristics of the building or area, whether it is single
tenant or multi tenanted and vacancy rates in the area.
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ANALYSIS OF RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS AND
CASH FLOWS BY SEGMENT
REAL ESTATE SEGMENT
Rental revenue in 2008 increased by $285,763
due to increased rental rates on lease renewals and
new revenue streams from two properties that were
completed during the last quarter of this fiscal year.
Most of the Company’s leases have escalations in
lease rates throughout their terms and as leases
mature or are renewed, Imperial can continue to
expect increases in revenue. Imperial continues to
enjoy nearly 100% occupancy in all of the buildings
with international, national and strong regional
companies as tenants. The only vacant space available
at September 30, 2008 amounts to less than 1% of the
total available lease space of all of the properties.
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Property operations expenses increased by
$100,419 this year mainly due to property tax
increases of $36,000, insurance increases of $18,500
and utility increases of $11,500. The Company was
able to recover 88% of the costs of operations from
the tenants compared to 92% in the prior year.
Un-recovered costs this year include major repairs to
parking lots that in some cases will be recovered from
the tenants over a four year period.
Amortization of revenue producing properties
is down slightly despite the increase in the revenue
producing property base. The building costs on the
build to suit project did not incur amortization until
the development became a revenue producing property
in July of 2008. A full year of amortization will not
occur until the following year.
Amortization of deferred leasing costs relates
entirely to the real estate segment. Real estate leasing
fees charged on the signing of new tenants or on lease
renewals are amortized over the life of the respective
leases varying from five to ten years.
Selling and administrative costs for the real estate
segment are up slightly this year (2008 - $220,788,
2007 – $170,039) and include fees of $43,783
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expensed this year for two new mortgages placed on the
newly developed properties. These fees include legal
fees, appraisals and environmental reports.
Removed from segmented expenses on the real estate side
are costs the Company incurs related to public company
expenditures that are not necessarily related to real
estate. Removing these costs and showing them separately
as corporate expenses in Note 20 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements provides a better comparison of
the real estate segment’s performance.
Corporate expenditures this year of $500,029 is an
increase of $133,888 over 2007. This increase can be
attributed to additional professional fees, increased fees
for in-house accounting and stock based compensation
expense of $31,720 this year.
Cash flows from the real estate operations had a
very positive impact through funds from operations
before non-cash operating balances, for total net cash
inflows of $845,591. Property operations continue to
generate positive results despite paying leasing fees in
the amount of $401,502 during the year.
Cash flows from changes in non-cash operating
balances were negative this year with increases in
receivables, decreases in tenant security deposits and
prepaid property tax accounts all largely relating to
the PowerComm building.
Cash flows from financing were positive with the
addition of $9,000,000 in new mortgages. Proceeds
of the financing were directly invested in the revenue
producing properties with net cash outflows from
investing at $10,377,736. Cash flows from investing
increased during the year due to the release of
Restricted cash previously held in a GIC as part of a
compensating balance on a mortgage. The GIC along
with accrued interest gave Imperial $515,268 toward
construction payments on the PowerComm project.
The real estate segment injected a total of $1,282,577
in Imperial Distributor’s line of credit to reduce
borrowing costs. As a result, the real estate segment’s
net cash position decreased during the year by
$813,287.

SIGNIFICANT BALANCE
SHEET CHANGES
REAL ESTATE SEGMENT

Future rent receivable has a net increase which is
the result of the new lease agreements signed this
year. Any lease incentives for free rent will impact
future rent receivable as the Company follows straight
line revenue recognition policies.

Cash at September 30, 2008 is down significantly
compared to 2007 due to the sale of the two revenue
producing properties late in the prior year that
provided a large cash balance at September 30, 2007.
Proceeds of the sale were used to assist with interim
construction financing on the PowerComm building
and the purchase and redevelopment of our Fort
Saskatchewan RSC building.

Deferred leasing costs net of amortization have
increased by $266,169. Total leasing fees incurred
this year on new or existing leases totaled $401,502.
More than half of this expenditure relates to the
PowerComm project. Leasing fees are based on a
percentage of lease revenues and as such the larger
the project, the larger the related fees.

Receivables from tenants are up $145,000.
This increase relates to the PowerComm tenant.
Construction costs attributed to additional lease
space for PowerComm that were above the original
contracted price, were tallied late in September with
responsibility for some of the improvements to be
borne by the tenant. Also included in receivables
are goods and services taxes refundable of $37,000
which relates to final construction costs.
Prepaid expenses and deposits increased $55,911.
Of this increase, $30,000 relates to prepaid property
taxes on the two new properties. The Company also
has a refundable bond with the City of Edmonton
for landscaping in connection with the PowerComm
building.

Expenditures on land held for development consist
of property taxes that were paid at June 30 and are
capitalized until such time as the property becomes
a revenue producing property.
Bank indebtedness consists of a new line of credit
received during the year with an existing lender. This
line of credit is for general business purposes and is
described in Note 10 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
Payables and accruals are up $216,000 at
September 30, 2008. This increase can be attributed
to construction costs accrued and unpaid at that date
as well as accounting fees billed and unpaid at year
end. Other financing and debentures remain at the
same balance as September 30, 2007. During the year,
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the Company received interim financing of $2,950,000
from private and related party lenders to assist with
interim financing for the PowerComm project. Of the
other financing, $2,000,000 carried an interest rate of
1% per month, and $950,000 carried interest at a rate
of 8% per annum. The other financing was used as
short term interim financing until new mortgages
were placed. Of the additional $2,950,000 received,
all was repaid in full with interest from the proceeds
of new mortgages. Further disclosure relating to
these loans is described in the related party
transactions of the MD&A and in Note 19 of the
consolidated financial statements.

on making sure operations were prepared to handle
rapid growth without consequences. The Company did
a full scale conversion to the new system and installed
new on-line ordering software to integrate with the
accounting system and accommodate all customers’
needs. Feedback from customers on the software has
been positive and has resulted in new
customers coming on board.

The current portion of mortgages has increased as
a result of three mortgages up for renewal in the next
twelve months. This has negatively influenced our
liquidity ratio compared to September 2007. The
Company intends to renew the mortgages as they
come due.

Interest expense in IDCI decreased this year as the real
estate segment paid down the operating line of credit.

A decrease in security deposits occurred with the
application of the monies received from PowerComm in
the prior year and applied to their first month’s rent in
the current year. Deposits are held by Imperial Equities
and act as security for the performance of the tenants.

ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND CASH
FLOWS BY SEGMENT(continued)
PHARMACEUTICALS SEGMENT
Imperial Distributors Canada Inc. (“IDCI”)
Revenue from the sale of pharmaceuticals has
increased significantly again this year. By September
30, 2008 sales had increased $3,512,747, a 51%
increase over last year. Gross margins in this segment
increased to 6.1% compared to 4.4% last year as the
Company continues to sell more profitable items in
larger quantities. At September 30, 2007 the Company
aggressively projected the next 12 month sales to be
in the range of $18 million. IDCI did not reach the
targeted sales for fiscal 2008 largely due to delays in
the implementation of the accounting software Great
Plains. Despite the delay setback, IDCI’s sales hit
$10,450,210. IDCI continued to operate and focused
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Amortization expense on capital assets increased
marginally this year with the addition of more
computers and software to complete the installation
of Great Plains.

Selling and administrative costs in IDCI are
$759,975 at September 30, 2008 compared to
$847,314 last year. Last year’s expenses included a
write down of a bad debt in the amount of $345,591.
Removing this unusual expense lowers the selling
and administrative costs to $501,723 for 2007. This
translates to an increase this year of $258,252. Of the
total increase this year, $138,099 relates to computer
programming costs associated with the implementation
of the e-commerce and inventory management
software. These are one-time large expenditures not
expected to recur. Also contributing to the increase
this year was a charitable donation of products in
the amount of $26,000 given to the Alberta Disaster
Relief Association. IDCI increased its leased footprint
in 2007 to accommodate more inventory and this year
saw a full year of additional lease costs increasing rent
expense by $27,732. IDCI also entered into vehicle
lease agreements for delivery vehicles. As the sales
increased, more deliveries were required creating
demand for additional delivery vehicles. Additional
expenditures this year for vehicle leases equal $7,350.
Included in selling and administrative costs are charges
for restocking fees incurred when expired product is
returned to some manufacturers. Not all manufacturers
charge a restocking fee, however IDCI has now been
inventorying products for over two years and those
products that may have been purchased two years
ago and haven’t sold, were now due to be returned
for exchange or refund. As inventory levels increase, a
margin for restocking charges was estimated at year end.

SIGNIFICANT BALANCE
SHEET CHANGES
PHARMACEUTICAL SEGMENT
IDCI’s cash position at September 30, 2008
is $103,545. This sum is held in a GIC with a
major bank.
Trade receivables are down $81,000 at September
30, 2008 even though sales have increased 51%.
IDCI’s strategy of aggressive prompt payment
discounts for customers has increased our current
cash flows and partially alleviated the need to utilize
our line of credit. Of the $1,945,629 trade receivables
outstanding, 46% are current, 27% are 31-60, 25%
are 61-90 and 2% over 90. This compares with last
year’s receivables where 22% were current, 23%
were 31-60, and 54% were 61-90. Other receivables
are in the 30-60 day ageing period and were received
subsequent to the yearend. Improvements in
collections has reduced our collection period from 81
days to 68 days.

to streamline operations and ensure efficiency is
immediately addressed. The inventory turnover ratio
has increased this year to 3.61 from 3.23. This ratio
measures the number of times the inventory turns
over in the year. The more times we can turnover the
inventory, the less our carrying costs.
Prepaid expenses have increased by $17,000 due to
greater insurance coverage of our business assets.
Bank indebtedness at year end is $55,648
compared to $767,973 last year. The real estate
segment contributed to the line of credit this year
by $1,282,577 reducing related overdraft interest
charges.
Accounts payable are up $131,000 over last year
which is directly related to the increase in sales.
Purchases of inventory to accommodate increased
sales are all within the terms of the suppliers. IDCI
continues to take advantage of all prompt payment
discounts offered by the suppliers.
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IDCI’S ASSET TURNOVER RATIOS

Some of Imperial’s IDCI Warehouse Team.

Inventory levels have increased modestly by $80,890
this year and are expected to continue to increase as
our customer base increases. A primary goal of IDCI is
to successfully anticipate the needs of the customers
by effectively monitoring their buying habits and
having their products readily available for delivery.
Weekly meetings involving warehouse personnel
encourages high performance levels by staff and
any need to take corrective and proactive measures

Inventory turnover ratio
Number of days inventory on hand
Receivables collection period

2008
3.61
101

2007
3.23
112

68

81

EVALUATION OF RESULTS OF
ACTIONS UNDERTAKEN AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE
FISCAL YEAR (IDCI)
Below are action items that Management undertook
at September 30, 2007 to increase revenues and the
customer base for Imperial Distributors Canada Inc.
Implementation of a custom software package to
better handle on-line ordering including narcotics,
improve warehouse inventory management and
increase reporting capabilities.
>> Completed And Now In Full Operation
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Rapid order fulfillment with twice daily delivery
within the metropolitan Edmonton region and 24
hour turnaround to most centers across Canada.
>> Addition Of Extra Delivery Vehicles
To Accomodate Customers

Improved relations with pharmaceutical manufacturers
and their representatives. By September 30, 2007,
IDCI had increased the number of suppliers from 36
to 64. This trend continued and included some of
Canada’s best recognized manufacturers.

Closely monitoring the margins on specific products
and negotiating manufacturers best prices based on
volume sales – then targeting those products for sale.

>> Current Number Of Suppliers Is – 96

Cross-training of employees between order desk,
shipping and receiving and accounting to effectively
handle any employee vacation periods or changes in
staff.

IDCI has expanded the warehouse footprint to
accommodate the increased levels of inventory and to
handle future growth plans progressively all within a
GMP (good manufacturing practices) compliant facility.
>> Completed And Now Provides Ability To
Segregate Product And Provide Indoor Storage Of
Our Equipment, Including Delivery Vans
Increase IDCI’s ratio of employees with science
degrees to properly fulfill the requirements of Quality
Person in Charge (QPIC), Alternate Quality Person in
Charge (AQPIC), Senior Person in Charge (SPIC) and
Quality Assurance (QA).
>> Hired 3 New University Of Alberta Science
Graduates To Address Quality Assurance
Practices, Ongoing Maintenance Of Standard
Operating Procedures And Ongoing Employee
Training By The Quality Person In Charge
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>> Results - Increased Gross Margins This Year

>> Idci Continues To Train Employees In
Multiple Areas And Internally Promote Job
Sharing To Develop Experienced Capable
Employees Able To Handle Any Situation
Effectively
Generating a positive team environment where all
employees feel they are contributing to the success
of the Company and are willing to work together to
continually improve our processes.
>> Weekly Meetings To Promote And Share Ideas
Amongst All Employees, Not Just Management

IDCI OUTLOOK
Imperial Distributors Canada Inc. (IDCI) was
purchased by Imperial Equities in February 2006
and operates as a wholly owned subsidiary. At that
time IDCI was a startup company involved in the
distribution of pharmaceuticals and medical devices.
Management began streamlining the operations by
focusing on the distribution of pharmaceuticals only.
The establishment of trade accounts with the major
manufacturers was paramount. Inventories needed
to increase, additional sales personnel were needed,
the customer base needed expansion as well as the
logistics to completing the supply chain.
To date Imperial Equities has injected sufficient cash
to allow IDCI to grow. Management has a very strong
commitment to succeed in this competitive market and
the opportunities are there for a good sound company.
Building a book of business requires the development
of relationships that take a significant amount of time
to nurture. For the past 12 months, management has
been in direct discussions with a large western
Canadian based pharmaceutical retailer. Only now
has the business relationship begun to come to
fruition. Results of this alliance will be reflected in the
ensuing reporting periods. It is anticipated that in the
next fiscal year, IDCI will be able to report the addition
of an equally large customer coming on board.
The faith in IDCI to deliver what it promises must
come from a history of service. IDCI is now in its third
year of operations which is comparatively young in the
entrepreneur industry. Progress has been remarkable
and continued confidence in the current operations
and staff lead management to believe that IDCI will
undoubtedly become a profit generating segment by
fiscal 2009.
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED
QUARTERLY RESULTS
Sep-08
Q4

2008
Q3

2008
Q2

2008
Q1

Sep-07
Q4

2007
Q3

2007
Q2

2007
Q1

3,505,103

3,978,432

2,936,785

3,399,754

2,704,902

3,313,399

1,916,529

2,022,437

16,281

-46,983

-52,161

40,006

-179,266

2,358,972

-56,858

-71,940

EPS-Basic

-0.01

-0.01

-0.01

0.01

-0.01

0.26

-0.01

-0.01

EPS-Diluted

-0.01

-0.01

-0.01

0.01

-0.01

0.26

-0.01

-0.01

Revenue
Net Earnings
-Loss

QUARTERLY CHANGES IN THE REVENUE
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Revenue producing properties report straight line
revenue therefore quarterly changes are not material
unless new tenants have come on stream as in the
last quarter of 2008. The changes in revenue in each
quarter can be primarily attributed to the sales of
pharmaceuticals. The decrease in 2008 Q2 is the result
of one large pharmaceutical customer placing their
monthly order just after the closing of the month end.
2007 Q3 showed a dramatic increase in revenue due
to May and June of 2007 having the highest reported
monthly sales of pharmaceuticals.

QUARTERLY CHANGES IN NET EARNINGS (LOSS)
AND EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
The loss in earnings for 2008 Q4 can be partly
attributed to recording the accrual of audit fees and
additional accounting fees associated with preparation
of the year end. Losses mid year in Q3 reflect the cost of
implementation of the new software at IDCI. Revenues
in the last quarter helped to absorb those costs.
In the last quarter of 2007 our earnings were
negatively affected by the write down of a bad debt in
IDCI in the amount of $345,591 and additionaly the
loss of rental revenues from two properties sold during
the year contributed to the net decrease in earnings in
that quarter.
The positive net earnings experienced at Q3, 2007
are due to the sale of two of our properties creating a
before tax gain of $2,940,100. Sales in IDCI reached
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the monthly break-even point during that third
quarter, reversing the monthly deficit experienced in
prior quarters. The earnings per share rose to $0.26.
The fluctuations in earnings per share figures are directly
related to the operational activities described herein.
There have been no significant changes to the outstanding
shares in the last three years.

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA
The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited
number of common shares. Total issued and
outstanding shares at December 17, 2008 are
9,206,342. During Q3 a former director of the
Corporation exercised their option to buy 100,000
common shares for $1.00 per share. In addition to the
options outstanding, a further 100,000 options were
issued to a director enabling the holder the right to
acquire one common share for each option held at an
exercise price of $1.75. There are currently 300,000
options held by directors of the Corporation that
remain unexercised. Of these 300,000 outstanding,
200,000 can be exchanged for one common share at
an exercise price of $1.00 and 100,000 options have
an exercise price of $1.75 for each common share.
All of the options expire August 11, 2010. On June
16th 2008, the Company received approval from the
TSX Venture Exchange for a Normal Course Issuer
Bid described in Note 15 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Paid to companies owned or controlled by
a director, majority shareholder
and officer
Property management and operations
expenditures in the amount of $243,955 (2007
$247,126) were paid to Sable Realty & Management
Ltd., (“Sable”) a company owned 100% by Sine
Chadi, a director and officer of the Company, and
North American Mortgage & Leasing Corp. (“NAML”)
a company owned 100% by Sine Chadi. Of the fees
paid to Sable, $183,655 are pursuant to a contract
with Imperial Equities Inc. to bill for the management
and maintenance of its properties for a percentage of
rents collected. Fees charged by Sable are favourable
compared to competitor’s fees for the same service.
These costs include building and ground maintenance
charges as well as the costs associated with billing
and collection of rents. Also included are labour and
equipment costs performed for tenant improvements
and tenant’s normal repairs and maintenance.
Imperial Equities recovers these fees from the
tenants under their common area costs. Additional
fees billed by Sable in the amount of $52,800 (2007
- $18,000.) include accounting costs associated
with public company quarterly and annual filing
requirements. Amounts outstanding and payable at
September 30, 2008 to Sable are $56,554. This year
operations also include the cost of leased vehicles in
the pharmaceutical company in the amount of $7,500
(2007-NIL). Vehicle lease costs were paid to NAML.
Leasehold improvements contract fees of
$550,000 (2007-nil) were paid to Sable for two large
scale tenant improvement projects. In each case, Sable
was the preferred contractor by the tenant and the
funds paid by Imperial Equities to Sable are amortized
and recovered from the respective tenants under their
lease agreements.
Leasing and real estate commissions in the
amount of $232,571 (2007- $378,354) were paid to
North American Realty Corp. (“NARC”) a company
managed and controlled by Sine Chadi and owned
100% by Mr. Chadi’s wife, Seham Chadi. NARC

has a contract with Imperial Equities Inc. to provide
asset management services by licensed realtors in
the province of Alberta. Fees and commissions paid
are in line with current industry standards and are
comparable to similar transactions undertaken by the
Company with unrelated parties. Any fees charged
by NARC are then paid by NARC to any participating
outside real estate firms and to the realtors employed
with NARC.
The above transactions took place at amounts which
in management’s opinion approximate normal
commercial rates and terms and occurred in the
normal course of operations. The transactions have
been recorded at the exchange amount.
Contracts with Sable and NARC have been in place since
1999 with no changes to the terms. They can be viewed
on-line at www.Sedar.com.
Also included in Sable’s billings to Imperial Equities
are a percentage of salaries paid for marketing
and consulting fees. These fees are billed to the
Company at 10% above base salary cost for actual
work performed. This 10% fee paid to Sable covers
additional expenses Sable incurs for costs associated
with employee benefits, car allowance, etc. Fees billed
for 2008 were $57,288 compared to $46,992 for 2007.

Other financing from a company owned
by a director, officer and majority
shareholder
Imperial Equities Inc. periodically receives loans
from Sine Chadi or a company owned by Sine Chadi
to assist the Company with interim financing needs.
When the Company secures other long-term financing,
these short term loans are paid back with interest
at a rate of 8% per annum calculated daily from the
date of advance until the repayment date. For the year
ending September 30, 2008, Mr. Chadi’s company
North American Mortgage Corp. has provided
Imperial Equities a total of $350,000 in loans (2007$850,000). Of the $350,000 loaned to Imperial
Equities, all has been repaid with the stated interest in
the aggregate of $2,915. At September 30, 2008 there
is no balance owing to North American Mortgage Corp.
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Other financing from a company
which is owned by a member of the
immediate family of a director and
significant shareholder
Additional interim financing has been provided to
Imperial Equities by a company which is owned by
the spouse of a director, Diane Buchanan. During
the current year, this company provided interim
financing of $2,000,000 in addition to the balance
outstanding at the beginning of the year in the amount
of $1,500,000. Of the total $3,500,000 borrowed by
the Company, $2,000,000 was repaid with interest at
a rate of 1% per month and the balance of $1,500,000
remains outstanding at September 30, 2008. Interest
is paid monthly on the $1,500,000 financing at a rate
of 8% per annum. These loans are unsecured with no
fixed terms of repayment. Total interest paid in 2008
was $181,315 compared to $120,000 in 2007.

Other financing from a director, officer
and majority shareholder
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The Company received a loan from Sine Chadi in
the amount of $100,000. The loan was repaid with
interest at a rate of 8% per annum. Total interest paid
for the year was $142. There is no balance owing at
September 30, 2008.

Paid to directors
A director of the Company, Diane Buchanan was a
debenture holder in the Company in the prior year.
During the prior year the debenture was paid in full in
the amount of $50,000 along with accrued interest at
the prescribed rate in the debenture which was 8% per
annum.
Mr. Kevin Lynch, a director of the Company, is a
partner in the law firm of Bennett Jones LLP who
provides corporate legal services to the Company.
All of the transactions are in the ordinary course of
business and include, but are not limited to, fees for
the acquisition and disposition of real estate assets.
Total fees billed for the year equal $47,307 (2007$75,193).

COMPENSATION OF
DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
The following table sets forth information in respect
of all compensation paid to the directors and officers
of the Corporation during the current financial year
for their services as directors and officers of the
Corporation.

Directors’ Fees

Salary

NIL

$180,000

Diane Buchanan, Director

$ 2,500.00

NIL

100,000/NIL

Kevin Lynch, Director

$ 3,000.00

NIL

100,000/100,000

Dr. Dennis Modry, Director

$ 2,000.00

NIL

100,000/100,000

Bill Smith, Former Director2

$ 1,000.00

NIL

100,000/NIL

Sine Chadi, Director & Officer

Notes (1) Granted pursuant to the Option Plan. (2)Bill Smith resigned as director effective March 10, 2008
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Options Granted/Total Held(1)
100,000/100,000

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL
RESOURCES AND SOLVENCY
The Company’s liquidity position is down from the
prior year as the principal balance of mortgages up
for renewal in the next twelve months are showing as
current liabilities. Removing these mortgages from
the current liabilities would show a liquidity ratio of
1.1 compared to 1.2 in the prior year. At September
30, 2007 proceeds from the sale of two of the revenue
producing properties contributed to the cash balance
of $1,481,590.
The working capital needed to fund the day-today operations of the real estate segment has been
generated through funds from regular operations.
During the year, the real estate segment had a net
cash outflow of working capital due to the payment of
$1,282,577 to the line of credit in IDCI. A refund of
the corporate taxes refundable at September 30, 2008
in the amount of $304,793 will contribute to the cash
flows in the next quarter. Imperial Equities has a line
of credit with a limit of $2,000,000 with a current
balance of $1,610,450. This line of credit is available
for general business purposes.
Imperial Distributors increased its cash flows from
operations this year over last year due to the timely
collection of receivables. In the prior year IDCI
increased its inventory by almost $1.3 million which
was funded by the real estate segment. Current
working capital needed in the pharmaceutical company
will be managed through the current line of credit.
Imperial Distributors has an operating line of credit
with a limit of $1,500,000 and a balance at September
30, 2008 of $55,648.
Mortgages on the revenue producing properties have
term dates varying from 2009 to 2013. The weighted
average interest rate on the mortgages is currently
5.05% compared to 5.23% at September 30, 2007.
Three of the mortgages are up for renewal in 2009.
Management will acquire independent third party
appraisals to identify the current market value of the
properties and potentially take advantage of unrealized
equity. Management’s opinion of the market value of

these three properties at year end is in the range of
$14,000,000. Placing new financing upon maturity of
these mortgages can bring an estimated $2 million in
cash into the Company in 2009.

CRITICAL ESTIMATES OF
THE CURRENT ECONOMIC
ENVIRONMENT AND OUTLOOK
The US sub-prime lending debacle has sent global
financial markets into crisis and here in Alberta, we
are not totally immune to the effects of these changes
in the way we do business. Financial institutions
have tightened up their lending practices with more
restrictions on borrowing causing a ripple effect in
some industries.
The Company has determined that this may affect
the real estate component of Imperial Equities in the
following areas:
• Current tenants and their exposure to market
risks including the impact of companies with
exposure to the production of oil and their ability
to weather tighter financial restrictions.
• Market value of the real estate properties can
decrease as the demand for space decreases.
• Lease rates may adjust downward as demand for
space decreases.
• Interest rates on mortgages that are up for renewal
may become higher as financial institutions widen
the gap on spreads.

Loss of tenants
Imperial’s real estate portfolio is predominatly made
up of large single tenanted buildings that are leased
to multinational, national and large regional tenants.
Unlike smaller local tenants these large companies
tend to be more skilled in the ability to weather an
economic downturn.
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With the exception of PowerComm, most tenants
have been with Imperial for a number of years already
and as a result, their leases are considered under
market. Imperial valued its properties at September
30, 2008 based on the current levels of income and
estimated capitalization rates in today’s market. Based
on this estimate, all of the properties are significantly
undervalued on the books. Our exposure to risky
tenants is very limited and in fact some of our tenants
are busier than they have ever been, requesting
additional space and buildings. Imperial is not aware
of any tenants prematurely terminating their leases
based on the current economic turbulence.

these risks. The large single tenant buildings have an
average remaining lease term of 5 years.

Interest rate risk
The three mortgages up for renewal in 2009 have
current interest rates ranging from 5.78% to 6.19%.
Interest rates on mortgages are not expected to
change dramatically from the levels we are seeing
today of approximately 5.8%. Therefore the affect on
the income statement may be positive as two of the
mortgages are currently higher than current market
rates.

Planned expenditures
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Notwithstanding the size of each individual tenant,
Imperial runs the risk of losing such a tenant due to
unforeseen and continued poor economic conditions.
If a tenant were to vacate, the risk to Imperial would
be the ability to continue to meet the mortgage
obligations on the property as well as carrying costs
including property taxes and insurance. To mitigate
this risk, Imperial would try to resolve temporary cash
flow problems with the tenant and/or pursue other
tenants for the same space. The cash flow required to
maintain the property in this extreme situation would
be funded with cash flows from property operations or
existing lines of credit.

Decline in market values
Imperial’s exposure to the market value of its real
estate assets affects mortgages up for renewal.
Mortgages that are coming up in the next 12 months
will be appraised for their current market value. The
market value of a property will be calculated using the
income generated through the property and factoring a
capitalization rate. Other factors that influence market
value are demand, vacancy rates, age of the building
and location. Imperial is not aware of any obstacles
at this date that would negatively affect its ability to
refinance its buildings as the mortgages come due.

Lease rate risk
As demand for space goes up so does the lease rate.
In any economic downturn we could expect that the
demand for space decreases and therefore the lease
rate would decrease accordingly. Imperial is mindful of
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At the date of this MD&A the Company has no planned
financial commitments for capital expenditures that
will require additional funding. The Company is
looking at potential opportunities to develop or sell
the vacant land in the west end of Edmonton which
may translate to positive cash inflows. There are
also opportunities to purchase properties that are
currently on the market. Activity in the marketplace
has increased due to the changes occurring in the
economy. The Company will look at all opportunities
and evaluate the best possible alternatives. Cash
needed to fund an acquisition of property will be
provided by private sources until long term financing
is put into place. At this date there are no outstanding
obligations or commitments to enter into any purchase
or sale agreements.

Current market conditions - impact on
the pharmaceutical company
The current economic environment poses threats to
Imperial Distributors’ operations in the following
areas:
• Price volatility affecting inventory costs
• Exposure to customers’ credit risks
• Interest rate risk

Inventory costs

Interest rate risk

Prices for generic inventory products are regulated by
the government and therefore sheltered from market
volatility. Large adverse inventory price adjustments
would impact the gross margins on the brand products
held in inventory. Imperial’s risk is minimized through
just in time inventory management processes.
Understanding the customers’ ordering habits ensures
that exposure to inventorying products for a long
period of time is reduced. IDCI has been successful
in receiving credits from certain manufactuers where
the price has decreased on products the Company
currently had in inventory. There has to date been no
material adverse price changes that has negatively
affected our gross margins.

IDCI’s exposure to interest rates lies in its operating
line of credit with a fluctuating rate based on prime.
The line of credit is used to bridge the gap between
receivables and payables. At yearend there was over
$1.4 million of unused credit available. At various
times during the year the line of credit will be used to
ramp up inventory for customer sales. This is generally
only a timing difference as cash flows from operations
will offset the need to rely on this line of credit in the
next twelve months. Subsequent to yearend, IDCI
renewed its line of credit with an increase in the
interest rate from prime plus 1.25% to prime plus
1.75%. If the Company were to utilitize its line of
credit fully, the impact on the financial statements of
the rate increase would not be material.

Accounts receivable
The risk to IDCI’s receivables lie in its customers’
exposure to the economic conditions and their
ability to pay their accounts. Exposure to this risk is
minimized by keeping tight controls over accounts
receivable collections and monthly monitoring of
accounts. Currently there are no known customers
with large accounts that pose a threat to the cash flows
of IDCI. Cash flows in the pharmaceutical segment
are projected to increase in the next twelve months
with increases in projected sales with current and new
customers.

Lease expiry
The leased premises currently occupied by IDCI are up
for renewal in June of 2010. The Company is currently
evaluating expansion plans and may use the real
estate segment to facilitate the growth needs of the
warehouse footprint. There are no commitments in
place to relocate and the current space will accomodate
the growth for the next twelve months.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Effective October 1, 2007, the Company has adopted
the new Canadian standard, Handbook Section 1535,
Capital Disclosures. This section establishes standards
for disclosure of both qualitative and quantitative
information about an entity’s capital that enables
users to evaluate the company’s objectives, policies
and processes for managing capital. The adoption of
this section did not have an impact on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations and has
resulted in enhanced disclosure included in Note 22.
Effective October 1, 2007, the Company has adopted
two new CICA standards Section 3862, Financial
Instruments - Disclosures and Section 3863,
Financial Instruments - Presentation which replaces
Section 3861, Financial Instruments - Disclosure and
Presentation. The new disclosure standard increases
the emphasis on the risks associated with both
recognized and unrecognized financial instruments
and how these risks are managed. Section 3863 carries
forward the former presentation related requirements
of Section 3861. Disclosure requirements pertaining to
these sections are contained in Note 26.
Effective October 1, 2007, the Company has
early adopted the new standard announced by the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA);
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Section 3031, Inventories, which supersedes
Handbook Section 3030 and converges with the
International Accounting Standard Board’s recently
amended standard IAS 2, Inventories. The standard
introduces significant changes to the measurement
and disclosure of inventory.
The measurement changes include: the elimination
of the last in first out method (LIFO), the requirement
to measure inventories at the lower of cost and net
realizable value, the allocation of overhead based on
normal capacity, the use of the specific cost method
for inventories that are not ordinarily interchangeable
or goods and services produced for specific purposes,
the requirement for an entity to use a consistent cost
formula for inventory of a similar nature and use,
and the reversal of previous write-downs to net
realizable value when there is a subsequent increase
in the value of inventories. Disclosures of inventories
have also been enhanced. Inventory policies, carrying
amounts, amounts recognized as an expense,
write-downs and the reversals of write-downs are
required to be disclosed.
This section has been applied retrospectively and did
not have a material impact on the current or previous
operating results of the Company. The measurement
cost of inventory purchases for the pharmaceuticals
products include the purchase price, any costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location,
net of any rebates and trade discounts.

Prior year adopted standard
Effective October 1, 2006, the Company adopted the
new standard announced by the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants (CICA); Section 3855 Financial
Instruments – Recognition and Measurement. As a
result, the Company was required to make an
accounting policy choice with regard to the treatment
of transaction costs. The Company previously recorded
financing transaction costs as a deferred asset and
amortized the costs straight-line into income over the
term of the related debt. Under the requirements of
Section 3855, the Company can choose to expense
transaction costs into net income as incurred, or
can recognize transaction costs as a component of
the related financial instrument. The Company has
chosen to expense transaction costs as incurred.
The transitional provisions require the Company to
recognize the impact of adopting the recommendations
on a prospective basis, with an adjustment to the
balance of retained earnings at the beginning of
the fiscal year. As a result, deferred financing costs
outstanding at the beginning of the prior fiscal
year have been adjusted against opening retained
earnings. The total impact on the prior year’s financial
statements is a decrease in opening retained earnings
of $54,147 and a corresponding decrease in deferred
financing on the balance sheet.

Future accounting pronouncements
Convergence with International Financial
Reporting Standards
In February of 2008 the Canadian Accounting
Standards Board confirmed that the use of
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
will be required for Canadian publicly accountable
enterprises for year ends beginning on or after January
1, 2011. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact of adopting IFRS on its consolidated financial
statements.
In February 2008, the CICA issued Section 3064;
Goodwill and Intangible Assets which replaces Section
3062, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets and
Section 3450, Research and Development Costs. The
new section establishes standards for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of goodwill

and intangible assets. This standard is effective for the
Company for interim and annual financial statements
beginning on October 1, 2008. The Company is currently
assessing the impact of the implementation of this
section on its consolidated financial statements.
Section 1400, General Standards of Financial Statement
Presentation was amended to change the guidance related
to management’s responsibility to assess the ability of the
entity to continue as a going concern. When preparing
financial statements, management is required to make
an assessment of an entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern and should take into account all available
information about the future, which is at least, but is
not limited to, 12 months from the balance sheet date.
Disclosure is required of material uncertainties related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The new standard is effective for the Company for interim
and annual financial statements beginning on October
1, 2008. The Company is currently assessing the impact
of the implementation of this section on its consolidated
financial statements.
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DISCLOSURE CONTROLS
AND PROCEDURES
Imperial Equities’ major weakness in internal controls
and procedures lies in the lack of segregation of duties in
the accounting department. Management is considering
a formal process involving directors to periodically review
the Company’s draft financial statements with more
in-depth transaction review of all material disclosures to
ensure consistency and accuracy of the reporting. Internal
controls and procedures within Imperial Distributors
continue to be revised and modified to maintain the
integrity of the financial information as well as provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are properly
authorized and reported.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET
ARRANGEMENTS
The Company has no off-balance sheet arrangements
to report.
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2008
PROPERTY
PERFORMANCE
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RSC FORT SASKATCHEWAN
11141 – 89 Avenue
Fort Saskatchewan, Alberta
Acquired: May 2008
Meet The Tenant:
Rental Service Corporation (RSC) is one of the largest
equipment rental firms in the United States and Canada.
For more than 50 years, RSC has provided equipment
(ranging from electric hand tools, forklifts, and backhoes
to post hole diggers and 100-foot telescopic boom
lifts to earth-moving equipment, computerized and
manned tool trailers, and mill supplies) for rental to the
industrial, petrochemical, and construction industry, as
well as to contractors and homeowners. The company
also sells parts, supplies, and used rental equipment;

NEW ACQUISITION
2008 Property Details:
Just minutes northeast of Edmonton and anchored
by the city of Fort Saskatchewan lies “Alberta’s
Heartland”. This prime industrial area has been
identified for the development of complementary
industries to the oil sands such as refineries and
upgraders.
This 2.3 acre property fronts highway 15 on the corner
of 112 Street in Fort Saskatchewan, Alberta. The
building is a 6000 square foot concrete block structure
that was completely renovated in 2008. The interior
features include a showroom and a bank of offices.
The shop features 3 repair bays and a complete wash
bay. The entire yard is fenced and paved allowing for
easy movement of equipment throughout.

distributes new equipment for manufacturers;
and provides support services, including onsite
maintenance and repair.
RSC sets the standard for customer service to
the construction, manufacturing, industrial and
petrochemical industries with highly trained people
and a wide range of rental equipment. RSC’s
commitment towards customer service is at the
forefront of everything they do.
Phone: (780) 992-1833 www.rscrental.com
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POWERCOMM BUILDING
6005 – 72 A Avenue
Edmonton, Alberta			
Developed By Imperial Equities: July 2008
Meet The Tenant:
PowerComm Inc. is an Edmonton based company
that provides electrical and instrumentation (E&I)
construction, E&I maintenance, valve service, and
manufactures electrical equipment. PowerComm
provides its services and sells its products through
13 offices located in Alberta as well as joint ventures in
Saskatchewan. The company’s key markets include
the oil and gas industry, utility/power corporations,
mining, agriculture, food processing and forestry.
Incorporated in 1993, operations began in 1995 and

COMPLETED 2008
2008 Property Details:
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Located in the Davies Industrial East business park of
Edmonton, this new 58,393 square foot specialty building
is comprised of 25,520 sq. ft. of office and 32,873 sq. ft.
of warehouse. The building is situated on 7.66 acres on
the south side of 72 A Avenue just east of 67 Street.
Imperial completed this build to suit project in July 2008.
The building features a two storey curtain wall finish
with the balance of the exterior walls of split face concrete
block and acrylic stucco. It is barrier free and all areas
are wheelchair accessible. The interior features include
two full floors of office, state of the art lighting and a fire
suppression system. The 2nd floor offices are accessed
by elevator or by the feature staircase leading to open
area that that overlooks the entire main reception. The
warehouse features include extensive craneways and state
of the art electrical and mechanical systems. The storage
yard is a 4 acre fenced and compacted compound with
concrete grade beams that ensure safety and stability of
the extensive pallet racking system.
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became a publicly traded company on the TSX through
an IPO in May 2007. PowerComm currently stores
more than 35,000 customer valves on site.
PowerComm was recognized as “One of Canada’s
50 Best Managed Companies” in 2003, 2004 and
2005. It was also recognized as “One of Alberta’s
50 Fastest Growing Companies” in 2005 and 2007.
Phone: (780) 465-7038 www.powercomm.ca

EQUIBUILT BUILDING
7115 Girard Road
Edmonton, Alberta
Acquired March 2002
Meet the Tenants:
Equibuilt Window Systems Inc. – Western Canada’s
first manufacturer of vinyl windows and continues to
be a leading supplier of high quality vinyl windows and
vinyl doors including specialty products such as patio
and French doors. Equibuilt’s casements and awnings
are designed to combine perfectly with bow windows
and angled bays, as well as elliptical and circle top combinations. It all starts with the quality of the raw material.
Equibuilt windows are made from an exclusive, 100%
Virgin uPVC powder compound that is entirely lead free.

The solid experience and cutting edge expertise of
Equibuilt designers enable them to harness the full
potential of uPVC. The multichamber construction
of the structural components lends them remarkable
sturdiness, air tightness, water tightness, thermal
insulation, and resistance to forced entry. Equibuilt
leads the industry in the number and thickness of profile
internal walls_a guarantee of superior performance.
Equibuilt is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kohltech
International, the largest window and door manufacturer
in the Atlantic Provinces. Phone: (780) 468-2756
www.equibuiltwindows.com

2008 Property Details:
The Equibuilt Building is situated on a 2-acre site
in a strong industrial area of southeast Edmonton.
Developed in 1982 the 50,000 square foot concrete
block building is ideally suited for distribution or light
manufacturing. Located just off Argyll road and 75th
street, the building has arterial access to anywhere in
Edmonton.
With 7,500 sq. ft. of main floor office/showroom
area and 42,500 sq. ft. of warehouse, this building
functions well for its current occupant, a light
manufacturing business. The building features include
an automatic fire suppression system, dock and grade
loading and enhanced mechanical systems.
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WESTERN GROCERS BUILDING
11415 – 120 Street
Edmonton, Alberta
Acquired: September 2005
Meet the Tenants:
CCT Logistic Services – CCT Logistics is a fullservice transportation, logistics and warehousing
company, specializing in fast, efficient distribution
throughout Canada. Established in 1994, CCT directly
and through its strategic partners, offers a full range
of LTL, warehousing and logistics services throughout
North America but are available to handle needs on
a worldwide basis as well. Phone: (780) 481-0100
www.cctlogistics.ca
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Danaflor Wholesale Inc. - Danaflor is a wholesaler
of fresh cut flowers. The owner has been in the flower
business for the past 21 years and has established
Danaflor and its predecessor Northern Bokay in 2004.
Fresh cut flowers as well as ready made bouquets
and arrangements are supplied to retailers including
Safeway, Sobey’s, Federated Co-op (the Grocery
People). The leased premises are comprised of 26,784
square feet with over 2000 square feet of cooler space.
Phone: (780) 451-8600

Four Way Distributors Ltd. - Established in 1993
Four Way Distributors are an exclusive distributor of food
products to companies and retailers such as Safeway and
Sobey’s. Four Way has been a tenant in the Western
Grocers Building since 1998 occupying 36,352 square feet.
Phone: (780) 453-1005
Solutions Workplace Furnishings – Solutions is a
high end office furniture retailer in Edmonton. Established
in 1995 they have been a supplier of office furniture to
many large companies. The leased premises comprised of

11,596 square feet are used as warehousing
and distribution only. There are no public sales
at this location. Phone: (780) 452-9991
www.workplacefurnishings.ca
Walkers Own Produce Ltd. - Walkers is one of
Alberta’s largest retailer of fresh fruit. Building on
the success of 25 years in the Calgary marketplace,
Walkers, a family run operation have expanded to
Edmonton. Commencing July of 2005, Walkers have
occupied the premises consisting of 4,976 square feet
with 4 built in coolers. Phone: (403) 561-3065

2008 Property Details:
Imperial’s largest building is this 103,000 square
foot concrete block building situated on 3.83 acres in
Edmonton’s Hudson’s Bay Reserve area. Located close to
downtown and the city centre airport, the property consists
of one whole city block and is fully leased to five different
distribution type tenants.
The Western Grocers Building is situated in a very central
part of Edmonton that allows each tenant easy access
to a large potential client base. The building has over
20,000 square feet of freezer and cooler space. Demand
for this type of space is at its highest and given the central
Edmonton location of this property, there is no doubt that
vacancies will remain negligible and rental rates strong.
The area serves as an excellent location for a distribution
or light industrial tenant and will continue to generate
income for our Company but more importantly it has great
future redevelopment potential. Imperial will continue to
bank land in the “city centre airport” area.
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NAIT DISTRIBUTION CENTRE
11311 – 120 Street
Edmonton, Alberta
Acquired: June 2005
Meet the Tenant:
The Northern Alberta Institute of Technology
(NAIT) is a leader in Canadian technical education.
As Alberta’s largest non-university post-secondary
institute, NAIT provides full-time and part-time career
education programs which focus primarily on technical
training in business, health sciences, information
management and communications, engineering
technologies, industrial technologies and a wide variety
of trades. NAIT offers more than 170 programs leading
to one-year certificates, two-year diplomas, four-year

2008 Property Details:
28

Located in the heart of the Hudson’s Bay Reserve
area and near the fringe of downtown Edmonton, this
70,000 square foot building is situated on 3.37 acres,
encompassing a whole city block. Features include
13,000 square feet of premium office space, natural
lighting in the warehouse with dock and grade loading.
The tenant, Northern Alberta Institute of Technology
(NAIT) has occupied the building for the past 19 years.
The building continues to serve NAIT with offices,
avionics class space, equipment maintenance and
warehousing. Imperial was fortunate to acquire a great
building in the heart of Edmonton that will serve NAIT
for many years to come.
This type of property will continue to generate income
for our Company but more importantly it has great
future redevelopment potential. Imperial will continue
to bank land in the “city centre airport” area. The area
serves as an excellent location for a distribution or
light industrial tenant.
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applied degrees or apprenticeship certification as well
as over 1200 Continuing Education courses.
With an annual Budget of over $200 million NAIT’s
financial impact creates a ripple effect throughout the
province, creating jobs and opportunities. In the final
analysis, the economic impact NAIT exerts on the
economy of Edmonton alone approaches $339 million
annually.

INDEPENDENT SUPPLY BUILDING
11418 – 120 Street
Edmonton, Alberta
Acquired: November 2004
Meet the Tenant:
Independent Supply Company - (ISC) is a premier wholesale distribution company of refrigeration, heating, ventilation
and air conditioning parts and equipment in Canada.
ISC is unique in many respects. Perhaps most noticeably,
the fact that the company is an employee ownership
company which permeates the culture of the organization.
This sense of ownership translates into a real ‘can do’
approach that is proactive, innovative and above all
dedicated to customer satisfaction and service.

The team consists of specially trained people with
the expertise and experience to exceed customer
expectations. ISC takes pride in providing exceptional
service and being a resource of information in addition
to your parts and equipment wholesaler. They are open
for business Saturdays and provide 24/7 Emergency
Service. ISC is committed to learning and provide local
training to help customers be familiar with the latest
products and innovations.
Phone (780) 451-4744 www.isc.tv

2008 Property Details:
In building Imperial’s portfolio of superior tenants and
properties, the Company seeks out prospective tenants
with specific space requirements. Imperial acquired this
well located industrial warehouse building in north-central
Edmonton specifically for Independent Supply Company,
a large regional company that wanted to expand. The
property is comprised of a 1.58 acre site together with
a 25,580 square foot building which required complete
upgrading. The acquisition contemplated ISC leasing the
entire property over a ten year period.
The premises were architecturally designed to meet the
requirements of the Tenant. Imperial agreed to provide a
schedule of specified work to the building and site, based
on the Tenant’s specifications. The final configuration of
the facility included approximately 10,000 square feet of
sales and administration areas including built to suit
offices, training room and staff areas.
The property underwent a transformation that included
a facelift to the building exterior and improvements to
the base building, roof, mechanical, electrical, plumbing,
entrances, windows, warehouse, parking lot, site, landscaping and loading areas. The building boasts a sophisticated
mechanical layout to showcase the products of the Tenant
and features fully air-conditioned warehouse areas.
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GESCAN BUILDING
15103 – 121 A Avenue
Edmonton, Alberta
Developed by Imperial Equities: July, 2004
Meet the Tenant:
Gescan is a leader in the distribution of electrical
supplies and equipment with 10 branches in the
Alberta and Prairie region. Gescan forms part of
Sonepar Canada and Sonepar world wide. Sonepar has
sales of over $10 billion in the electrical distribution
industry with a large presence in Europe, North

2008 Property Details:
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Imperial and its consultants planned an architecturally
designed site and building according to requirements
and specifications of the tenant. The high quality
facility was completed as agreed upon and delivered
precisely on time. Gescan proudly took occupancy of
its new premises in July of 2004.
The 2.34 acre site for the development was a portion
of the 11.06 acre block of industrial lands recently
assembled by the company in Edmonton’s west end
industrial corridor. The facility includes a 4,700 square
foot 2 storey office component with the balance of
the building being an 18,000 square foot, 28 foot
high, state of the art warehousing facility. Amenities
include enhanced mechanical systems, a fully paved
and landscaped site, customer parking, both dock and
grade loading along with a secured storage yard area.
The building is a rectangular pre-engineered clear
span, fully insulated metal building and is finished
in a bronze colored exterior cladding, with the office
portion featuring a curtain wall window treatment
of anodized smoke grey color glazing. A first class
addition to the Imperial portfolio!
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America, South American and Asia. As part of Sonepar
Canada and one of the largest electrical distribution
networks, Gescan has put together a unique blend of
people, products and partners to help customers with
their electrical product and service needs.
Phone (780) 455-7171 www.gescan.com

HUDSON’S BAY CROSSDOCK FACILITY
11727 – 178 Street
Edmonton, Alberta
Acquired, June 2002
Meet the Tenant:
Hudson’s Bay Company (Hbc) established in 1670,
is Canada’s largest department store retailer and oldest
corporation. The company provides Canadians with
the widest selection of goods and services available
through numerous retail channels, including more

than 500 stores led by the Bay and Zeller’s
chains. Hudson’s Bay Company is Canada’s fifth
largest employer with 70,000 associates and has
operations in every province in Canada.
www.hbc.com

2008 Property Details:
This 5-acre property features a 22,600 square
foot building which is fully leased to a longterm tenant, the Hudson’s Bay Company. The
building functions as a distribution centre for the
company’s local retail stores including the Bay,
Zellers and Home Outfitters.
The property is very well situated with major
frontage along 178 street, a major thoroughfare.
With 5 acres on two titles and given the low site
coverage taken up by the leased building, and
given the building’s entire positioning on only one
of the titles, the balance of the land, located on the
second title, has been banked by the company for
future development opportunities.
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YELLOWHEAD WAREHOUSES
14715/35 Yellowhead Trail
Edmonton, Alberta
Acquired: May 2000
Meet the Tenants:
Pacific West Systems Supply Ltd. – A wholesale
and retail supplier of a wide range of construction
materials including drywall, steel studs, insulation,
stucco products, ceiling tiles and skid systems,
moveable partitions and tools and accessories. Pacific
Western is a large regional company with locations
across Western Canada. Phone: (780) 452-5202
www.pacwestsystems.com

2008 Property Details:
32

The Yellowhead Warehouses consist of two 30 year
old buildings with 33,200 square feet of total leasable
space, well-located along the Yellowhead Trail, one
of Edmonton’s busiest throughfares and a major
commercial artery. Upon purchase, this property
required aggressive upgrading and marketing. It was
vacant upon acquisition, but aggressive efforts saw the
property fully leased by the beginning of 2002 and it
remains fully occupied.
Along with a great exposure, the property backs on to
a rail spur that has become a valuable property feature
that is in big demand. In Edmonton, buildings with
rail access have become scarce resulting in higher
than average rental rates. The property continues to
perform well and stands as one of the company’s best
investments with market value estimated to be more
than 3 times the book value.

IMPERIAL EQUITIES INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2008

THE CAPITAL BUSINESS PARK
15730/40 – 118 Avenue
Edmonton, Alberta
Acquired March 1999
Meet the Tenants:
Capital City RV Bargain Clearance Centre Ltd. –
Offers an unbeatable selection of quality RV units for
sale. Phone: (780) 413-9944 www.capitalcityrv.com
Rental Service Corporation of Canada (RSC) – One
of North America’s leading rental service companies.
Offers every tool imaginable for short or long-term
rental. Phone: (780) 465-5151.
www.rentalservice.com

2008 Property Details:
Located in one of Edmonton’s busiest industrial
corridors, this 4.10 acre site was one of the company’s
earliest acquisitions. The property features three
buildings that have been leased to the same tenants
since our acquisition in 1999.
In 2006 Imperial Equities commenced a major renewal
of the RSC building that included a complete interior
renovation, new roof, siding, landscaping and more
than one acre of paved storage yard. With long term
lease agreements in place, this property will continue
to give the Company both immediate income and for
the long term, a parcel of land that will accrue value
and will naturally lead to development opportunities in
the future.
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OLIVER CROSSING
10304/36 – 111 Street
Edmonton, Alberta
Acquired: February 1999
Meet the Tenants:
Zorba’s – Hot authentic gourmet pizza and traditional
pasta with homemade pizza and pasta sauces.
Edmonton Journal 2006 rated Zorba’s pizza as “deep
dish pies a taste delight”. Best pizza in Edmonton!
Phone: (780) 423-2229
Stir – Not your typical sports bar. This restaurant
and club is designed around a collection from some of
Edmonton’s most memorable sports moments.
Phone: (780) 423-1643
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OOMPH! Events – A full service company providing
strategy, program, marketing, sponsorship, technology and
production solutions to clients in the conference and meeting
industry. OOMPH! Events, brings out the best in conferences
by being the best in conference management.
Phone: (780) 669-2778 www.oomphevents.com
Louisiana Purchase – Continually rated one of Edmonton’s
top restaurants and featuring an array of authentic Cajun and
Creole cuisine. Phone: (780) 420-6779

William H. Ross Architect Ltd. – Is a traditional
architectural consulting group operating since 1977.
The company offers a full range of architectural
expertise in commercial, institutional, industrial
and residential projects. Other work includes tenant
improvements and interior design for a variety of
clients including the Bank of Nova Scotia and Merrill
Lynch. Phone: (780) 482-3495

Pipeline Surf Co. – A retail outlet that stocks new
and used equipment specializing in wind surfing, kite
boarding and long boarding. With year around sales
and rentals you can also get lessons in any of the
sports. Pipeline offers a full line of street wear and
surf wear from shorts to sandals.
Phone (780) 421-1575

2008 Property Details:
Oliver Crossing is the Company’s longest-held property
and has continually been a model for the company.
The 1.25 acre site has 17,325 square feet of leasable
space in two buildings.
Imperial has made significant upgrades to this 71-year
old building to transform it into a charming property,
located on the fringe of downtown Edmonton, in the
city’s historic Oliver district. This area has undergone
a remarkable transformation over the past five years
becoming one of the City’s fastest growing residential
and commercial communities.
The Company’s initial purchase of this property was
made just when the overall revitalization of the Oliver
district was just beginning. It has therefore been
able to hold on to an asset that has seen tremendous
growth in its market value.
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AITEC BUILDING
2507 – 84 Avenue
Edmonton, Alberta
Acquired September 2001
Meet the Tenant:
Aitec (Western) Inc. – This North American
company provides a full-range of non-destructive
testing services to industries which include: oil and
gas, pipeline, fabrication, civil, construction, steel,
petrochemical and pulp and paper.
Phone (780) 417-7777.
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2008 Property Details:
Situated on a four-acre site, this building had an
existing single tenant and a custom-constructed
industrial building measuring approximately 33,500
square feet. The building contains two concrete
bunkers with 36-inch concrete walls and door which
allow the company to do non-destructive testing onsite. The specialty building is the only one of its kind
in the Pacific Northwest, and the cost to construct a
similar building would be about $5 million.
Given the highly specialized features of the building
and the presence of a stable, long-term tenant, the
Company has enjoyed steady returns on the property
and has steadily achieved a growing equity position.

IMPERIAL EQUITIES INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2008

37

2008
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

















38






            




           
             
            
             
            
           


            






 




IMPERIAL EQUITIES INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2008

Imperial Equities Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AND RETAINED EARNINGS
______________________________________________________________________________________
Year Ended September 30,
2008
2007
$
$

Revenue
Rental revenue
Operating cost recoveries
Sales of pharmaceuticals
Interest

2,648,967
700,195
10,450,210
20,702
13,820,074

2,363,204
637,305
6,937,463
19,295
9,957,267

793,485
9,810,143
985,574
676,764
135,333
57,920
58,189
1,288,388
31,720
133,955
26,729
13,998,200
(178,126)

693,066
6,629,616
966,757
707,924
144,056
57,920
48,985
1,277,484
83,079
22,931
10,631,818
(674,551)

Expenses
Property operations
Cost of sales of pharmaceuticals
Interest on mortgages, debentures and other financing
Amortization of revenue producing properties
Amortization of deferred leasing costs
Amortization of intangibles
Amortization of capital assets
Selling and administrative (Note 23)
Stock compensation (Note 16)
Professional fees
Shareholder communications
Loss before other item and income taxes

Other item
Gain on sale of properties (Note 6)
(Loss) earnings before income taxes
Income taxes (recovery) (Note 14)
Current income tax
Future income tax

Net (loss) earnings and comprehensive income
Retained earnings, beginning of year
Change in accounting policy (Note 2)
Retained earnings as restated
Net (loss) earnings and comprehensive income
Premium on shares cancelled (Note 15)
Retained earnings, end of year
(Loss) earnings per share - basic (Note 18)
(Loss) earnings per share - diluted (Note 18)
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

(178,126)

(298,753)
163,484
(135,269)
(42,857)
4,344,742
4,344,742
(42,857)
4,301,885
(.01)
(.01)

2,946,968
2,272,417

394,033
(172,523)
221,510
2,050,907
2,348,372
(54,147)
2,294,225
2,050,907
(390)
4,344,742
.23
.22
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Imperial Equities Inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
September 30,
Assets
Current
Cash
Receivables
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Income taxes receivable
Future income taxes (Note 14)

Restricted cash (Note 2)
Future rent receivable
Deferred leasing costs (Note 7)
Revenue producing properties (Note 3)
Property under development (Note 4)
Land held for development (Note 5)
Capital assets (Note 8)
Intangible assets (Note 9)
Future income taxes (Note 14)
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Liabilities
Current
Bank indebtedness (Note 10)
Payables and accruals
Income taxes payable
Other financing (Note 13)
Debentures (Note 12)
Current portion of mortgages (Note 11)

Security deposits
Mortgages (Note 11)
Future income taxes (Note 14)
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital (Note 15)
Contributed surplus (Note 17)
Repurchased shares for cancellation (Note 15)
Retained earnings

2008
$

2007
$

647,130
2,272,531
2,761,061
186,671
357,269
5,993
6,230,655

1,481,590
1,723,040
2,680,171
113,820
10,473
6,009,094

279,608
799,970
26,562,716
446,448
203,993
426,432
539,480
35,489,302

515,268
249,258
533,801
15,316,520
2,344,781
414,199
208,732
484,352
543,059
26,619,064

1,666,098
1,396,218
1,500,000
330,000
3,795,996
8,688,312

767,973
1,065,432
394,033
1,500,000
330,000
887,212
4,944,650

128,160
17,380,149
959,106
27,155,727

325,336
12,202,569
803,681
18,276,236

4,044,086
85,720
(98,116)
4,301,885
8,333,575
35,489,302

3,917,086
81,000
4,344,742
8,342,828
26,619,064

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
Commitments (Note 24)

On Behalf of the Board
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Sine Chadi
Director

Kevin Lynch
Director

Imperial Equities Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended September 30,

2008
$

2007
$

(42,857)
676,764
57,920
58,189
135,333
(401,502)
31,720
163,484
679,051
(1,351,274)
(672,223)

2,050,907
707,924
57,920
48,986
144,056
(394,568)
(172,523)
(2,946,968)
(504,266)
(1,317,374)
(1,821,640)

9,000,000
(913,636)
2,950,000
(2,950,000)
(98,117)
100,000
898,125
8,986,372

5,386,947
(4,822,973)
1,350,000
(1,650,000)
(50,000)
100,000
(934,861)
(620,887)

515,268
(8,136,194)
(32,248)
(53,450)
(1,441,985)
(9,148,609)

(515,268)
(26,685)
(408,596)
(94,898)
(586,329)
5,254,118
3,622,342

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Operating
Net (loss) earnings and comprehensive income
Amortization of revenue producing properties
Amortization of intangibles
Amortization of capital assets
Amortization of deferred leasing costs
Expenditures on deferred leasing costs
Stock compensation
Future income tax (recovery)
Gain on sale of properties
Funds from operations
Change in non-cash operating balances (Note 21)

Financing
Mortgage proceeds
Repayment of mortgages
Advances from other financing
Repayment of other financing
Repayment of debentures
Purchase of common shares for cancellation
Proceeds from options exercised
(Repayment) advances on operating line of credit

Investing
Restricted cash
Purchase of revenue producing properties
Additions to land held for development
Additions to property under development
Additions to capital assets
Property improvements
Net proceeds on sale of properties

Net (decrease) increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
Supplemental consolidated cash flow information (Note 21)

(834,460)
1,481,590
647,130

1,179,815
301,775
1,481,590
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Imperial Equities Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008

______________________________________________________________________
1.

Nature of operations

Based in Edmonton, Alberta, Imperial Equities Inc.’s major operations consist of development and
redevelopment of commercial and industrial properties in the Edmonton area and the sale and
distribution of pharmaceuticals. The Company’s common shares trade on the TSX Venture Exchange
(TSXV) under the symbol “IEI”.
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of presentation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles within the framework of the accounting policies summarized
below. The consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities and results of operations of the
Company and its subsidiary. All inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated.
Changes in accounting policies
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Effective October 1, 2007, the Company has adopted the new Canadian standard, Handbook Section
1535, Capital Disclosures. This section establishes standards for disclosure of both qualitative and
quantitative information about an entity’s capital that enables users to evaluate the Company’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. The adoption of this section did not have an
impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations and has resulted in enhanced
disclosure included in Note 22.
Effective October 1, 2007, the Company has adopted two new CICA standards Section 3862, Financial
Instruments - Disclosures and Section 3863, Financial Instruments - Presentation which replaces Section
3861, Financial Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation. Section 3862 increases the emphasis on the
risks associated with both recognized and unrecognized financial instruments and how these risks are
managed. Section 3863 carries forward the former presentation related requirements of Section 3861.
Disclosure requirements pertaining to these sections are contained in Note 26.
Effective October 1, 2007, the Company has early adopted the new standard announced by the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA); Section 3031, Inventories, which supersedes Handbook Section
3030 and converges with the International Accounting Standard Board’s recently amended standard IAS 2,
Inventories. The standard introduces significant changes to the measurement and disclosure of inventory.
The measurement changes include: the elimination of the last in first out method (LIFO), the requirement
to measure inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value, the allocation of overhead based on
normal capacity, the use of the specific cost method for inventories that are not ordinarily
interchangeable or goods and services produced for specific purposes, the requirement for an entity to
use a consistent cost formula for inventory of a similar nature and use and the reversal of previous writedowns to net realizable value when there is a subsequent increase in the value of inventories. Disclosures
of inventories have also been enhanced. Inventory policies, carrying amounts, amounts recognized as an
expense, write-downs and the reversals of write-downs are required to be disclosed.
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Imperial Equities Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008

______________________________________________________________________
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

This section has been applied retrospectively and did not have a material impact on the current or
previous operating results of the Company. The measurement cost of inventory purchases for the
pharmaceuticals products include the purchase price, any costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location, net of any rebates and trade discounts.
Prior year adopted standard
Effective October 1, 2006, the Company adopted the new standard announced by the Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants (CICA); Section 3855 Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement. As
a result, the Company was required to make an accounting policy choice with regard to the treatment of
transaction costs. The Company previously recorded financing transaction costs as a deferred asset and
amortized the costs straight-line into income over the term of the related debt. Under the requirements
of Section 3855, the Company can choose to expense transaction costs into net income as incurred, or can
recognize transaction costs as a component of the related financial instrument.
The Company has
chosen to expense transaction costs as incurred.
The transitional provisions require the Company to recognize the impact of adopting the
recommendations on a prospective basis, with an adjustment to the balance of retained earnings at the
beginning of the fiscal year. As a result, deferred financing costs outstanding at the beginning of the prior
fiscal year have been adjusted against opening retained earnings. The total impact on the prior year’s
financial statements is a decrease in opening retained earnings of $54,147 and a corresponding decrease
in deferred financing on the balance sheet.
Future accounting pronouncements
Convergence with International Financial Reporting Standards
In February of 2008 the Canadian Accounting Standards Board confirmed that the use of International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) will be required for Canadian publicly accountable enterprises for
year ends beginning on or after January 1, 2011. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
adopting IFRS on its consolidated financial statements.
In February 2008, the CICA issued Section 3064; Goodwill and Intangible Assets which replaces Section
3062, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets and Section 3450, Research and Development Costs. The new
section establishes standards for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of goodwill
and intangible assets. This standard is effective for the Company for interim and annual financial
statements beginning on October 1, 2008. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the
implementation of this section on its consolidated financial statements.
Section 1400, General Standards of Financial Statement Presentation was amended to change the
guidance related to management’s responsibility to assess the ability of the entity to continue as a going
concern. When preparing financial statements, management is required to make an assessment of an
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and should take into account all available information about
the future, which is at least, but is not limited to, 12 months from the balance sheet date. Disclosure is
required of material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. The new standard is effective for the Company for interim
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Imperial Equities Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008

______________________________________________________________________
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Future accounting pronouncements (cont’d)
and annual financial statements beginning on October 1, 2008. The Company is currently assessing the
impact of the implementation of this section on its consolidated financial statements.
Use of estimates and measurement uncertainty
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates
included in these consolidated financial statements relate to the valuation of receivables, the useful lives
of the revenue producing properties, impairment testing requiring an estimate of the fair value of
intangible assets, valuation of inventory and capital assets, stock-based compensation and the valuation
of future income tax assets. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
Financial instruments – disclosure and presentation
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The Company has adopted Sections 3862 Financial Instruments – Disclosure and 3863 Financial
Instruments – Presentation, which requires additional disclosures to enable users to evaluate the
significance of financial instruments to the Company’s financial position and performance. Qualitative and
quantitative disclosures are provided in Note 26 to enable users to evaluate the nature and extent of risks
arising from the Company’s financial instruments.
Impairment of long-lived assets
Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment loss will be recognized in the period when
the carrying amount of the long-lived asset exceeds the net recoverable amount. The net recoverable
amount is the sum of undiscounted cash flows from the expected use and eventual disposal of the asset.
If impairment is indicated, the asset or asset group would then be written down to its fair value.
Revenue producing properties
Revenue producing properties which are held as ongoing investments are stated at the lower of cost less
accumulated amortization and net recoverable amount. Cost includes all expenditures incurred in
connection with the acquisition of revenue producing properties including all direct costs. Major capital
improvements and replacements are capitalized and amortized over terms appropriate to the expenditure
to the extent that management has determined they are a betterment to the property with the disposed
estimated cost and accumulated amortization of the previous related components being removed. Net
recoverable amount represents the undiscounted estimated future net cash flow to be generated from
the revenue producing property throughout its useful life and includes its residual value.
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Imperial Equities Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008

______________________________________________________________________
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Revenue producing properties (cont’d)
Amortization has been recorded in the accounts using the following annual rates and method:
Buildings
Parking lots
Fencing
Equipment and signage
Tenant improvements

4%, declining balance
8%, declining balance
10% declining balance
20%, declining balance
20%, declining balance

Capital assets
Capital assets are used in the operations of the pharmaceutical segment. Amortization has been recorded
in the accounts using the following annual rates.
Furniture and fixtures
Computers
Computers-new
Computer software
Vault and cage
Vehicle
Leaseholds

20%, declining balance
45%, declining balance
55%, declining balance
20%, declining balance
20%, declining balance
30%, declining balance
20%, declining balance

Property under development
Property under development in the prior year was recorded at cost. Costs capitalized to the development
include the land acquisition costs plus accumulated carrying costs, direct project costs and property taxes.
In July of 2008 the property became available for use and all of the project costs were transferred to
revenue producing properties with amortization recorded at the respective rates for revenue producing
properties.
Land held for development
Land held for development is recorded at cost. Costs capitalized to land held for development include all
direct costs relating to the project, land acquisition costs and carrying costs which include property taxes.
Deferred leasing costs
Deferred leasing costs relate to leasing commissions to agents incurred in securing leases for real estate
properties. These costs are deferred and amortized over the respective lease terms from five to ten years.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances with banks and short term investments with
original maturities of three months or less. As at September 30, 2008, the Company held only balances
with banks. Bank indebtedness, mortgages, debentures and other financing are considered to be
financing activities.
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Imperial Equities Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008

______________________________________________________________________
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Restricted cash
Restricted cash in the prior year included deposits with a bank held in a term deposit as part of a
compensating balance required in accordance with a mortgage lending arrangement. During the year, the
bank released the funds held in a guaranteed investment certificate (“GIC”) and the proceeds together
with accrued interest were used to finance the construction of the build to suit project.
Inventory
Inventory in the Company consists of pharmaceutical products and is valued at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Net realizable value is defined as the estimated selling price less estimated selling costs.
Cost is determined using the weighted average cost method and is the price paid for the products less any
allowances received from generic drug suppliers. Allowances are shown as a reduction to inventory and
recognized in income when the products are sold. Inventory is reviewed for obsolescence on an item by
item basis. Inventory that has less than 90 days to expiry is returned to the manufacturer for replacement.
In practice, and based on historical experience the manufacturer will replace the goods returned; however
there are no guarantees or legal obligations of the manufacturer to accept returns.
Intangible assets
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Intangible assets acquired in the business acquisition of the pharmaceutical segment consist of operating
licenses acquired through Health Canada. The Company determines the estimated useful life of the
intangible asset based on a number of factors, including the going concern of the subsidiary company
taking into consideration the competition, any regulatory or contractual limitations, known technological
impairments to continuing business and any other known growth inhibitors. A significant change in any of
these factors could require a revision of the expected useful life of the intangible asset, which could have
a material effect on the Company’s results of operations through an increase in amortization.
Amortization is currently recorded in the accounts using the straight-line method. As at September 30,
2008 it is estimated there are eight years remaining in the useful life of the asset.
Income taxes
Under the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes, future income tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the tax and accounting bases of assets and
liabilities calculated using substantively enacted tax rates anticipated to apply in the period that the
temporary differences are expected to reverse. Future income tax assets including those arising from loss
carry forwards are assessed to determine if they are more likely than not to be realized in future periods
before the future income tax asset is recognized.
Revenue recognition
As the Company retains substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership of its revenue producing
properties, it accounts for leases with tenants as operating leases. Rental revenue from leases, including
minimum rent, recoveries of operating expenses and property taxes and other sundry revenue is
recognized as income over the term of the lease. Minimum rental revenue is recorded for the term of
each lease on a straight-line basis. A receivable is recorded from tenants for the current difference
between the straight-line rent and the rent that is due from the tenants under their current obligations.
Revenue from the sale of revenue producing properties is recognized once all significant conditions have
been met and the collection of the sale proceeds is reasonably assured.
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2.2.

Summary
Summaryofofsignificant
significantaccounting
accountingpolicies
policies(cont’d)
(cont’d)

Revenue
Revenuerecognition
recognition(cont’d)
(cont’d)
Revenue
Revenuefrom
fromthe
thesale
saleofofpharmaceuticals
pharmaceuticalsisisrecognized
recognizedwhen
whenthe
theproduct
productisisshipped
shippedand
andthere
thereisis
reasonable
reasonableassurance
assuranceregarding
regardingcollectability.
collectability.Revenues
Revenuesare
arerecorded
recordedusing
usingthe
thegross
grossrevenue
revenuemethod
method
which
is
the
amount
charged
to
customers
net
of
rebates,
discounts
and
sales
returns
by
customers.
Any
which
is
the
amount
charged
to
customers
net
of
rebates,
discounts
and
sales
returns
by
customers.
Any
Imperial Equities Inc.
allowances
received
from
generic
manufacturers
for
distributing
the
product
is
recorded
in
income
when
allowances
received fromFinancial
generic manufacturers
for distributing the product is recorded in income when
Notes
to the Consolidated
Statements
the
isissold.
theproduct
product
sold.
September
30,
2008
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Earnings
Earningsper
pershare
share

2.
Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
The
Thecomputation
computationofofbasic
basicearnings
earningsper
pershare
sharehas
hasbeen
beencalculated
calculatedusing
usingthe
theweighted
weightedaverage
averagenumber
numberofof
common
commonshares
sharesoutstanding
outstandingduring
duringthe
theyear.
year. Diluted
Dilutedearnings
earningsper
pershare
sharereflect
reflectthe
thepotential
potentialdilution
dilutionthat
that
Revenue recognition (cont’d)
would
wouldoccur
occurififstock
stockoptions
optionswere
wereexercised.
exercised. The
TheCompany
Companyuses
usesthe
the“treasury
“treasurymethod”
method”for
foroutstanding
outstanding
options
optionswhich
whichassumes
assumesthat
thatall
alloutstanding
outstandingstock
stockoptions
optionswith
withan
anexercise
exerciseprice
pricebelow
belowthe
theaverage
averagemarket
market
Revenue from the sale of pharmaceuticals is recognized when the product is shipped and there is
price
priceare
areexercised
exercisedand
andassumed
assumedproceeds
proceedsare
areused
usedtotopurchase
purchasethe
theCompany’s
Company’scommon
commonshares
sharesatatthe
the
reasonable assurance regarding collectability. Revenues are recorded using the gross revenue method
average
averagemarket
marketprice
priceduring
duringthe
thereporting
reportingperiod.
period.
which is the amount charged to customers net of rebates, discounts and sales returns by customers. Any
allowances received from generic manufacturers for distributing the product is recorded in income when
Stock
Stockbased
basedcompensation
compensation
the product is sold.
The
TheCompany
Companyhas
hasaastock
stockoption
optionplan,
plan,which
whichisisdescribed
describedininNote
Note16.
16.The
TheCompany
Companyfollows
followsthe
thefair
fairvalue
value
Earnings per share
method
methodofofaccounting
accountingfor
forall
allstock
stockoptions
optionsgranted.
granted.Under
Underthis
thismethod,
method,compensation
compensationexpense
expensefor
forstock
stock
options
optionsisismeasured
measuredatatfair
fairvalue
valueatatthe
thegrant
grantdate
dateusing
usingthe
theBlack-Scholes
Black-Scholesoption
optionpricing
pricingmodel
modeland
and
The computation of basic earnings per share has been calculated using the weighted average number of
recognized
recognizedasascompensation
compensationexpense
expenseasasawards
awardsvest,
vest,with
withoffsetting
offsettingamounts
amountsrecognized
recognizedasascontributed
contributed
common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that
surplus.
surplus.When
Whenthe
theoptions
optionsare
areexercised,
exercised,the
theproceeds
proceedsreceived
receivedby
bythe
theCompany,
Company,together
together with
withthe
the
would occur if stock options were exercised. The Company uses the “treasury method” for outstanding
related
amount
in
contributed
surplus
are
added
to
share
capital.
Forfeited
or
expired
options
are
put
related amount in contributed surplus are added to share capital. Forfeited or expired options are put
options which assumes that all outstanding stock options with an exercise price below the average market
back
backinto
intothe
thepool
poolofofavailable
availablestock
stockoptions
optionsfor
forfuture
futuregrants.
grants.
price are exercised and assumed proceeds are used to purchase the Company’s common shares at the
average market price during the reporting period.
3.3.
Revenue
Revenueproducing
producingproperties
properties
Accumulated
Net
Accumulated
Net
Stock based compensation
2008
Cost
Amortization
Book
2008
Cost
Amortization
BookValue
Value
The Company has a stock option plan, which is described in Note 16. The Company follows the fair value
Land
$$ 7,991,448
-$$ 7,991,448
Land of accounting for all stock options granted.
7,991,448
7,991,448
method
Under this method,$$compensation
expense
for stock
Buildings
18,540,144
2,398,382
16,141,762
Buildings
18,540,144
2,398,382
16,141,762
options is measured at fair value at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and
Parking
163,984
1,098,510
Parkinglots
lotsas compensation expense as awards1,262,494
1,262,494
163,984
1,098,510
recognized
vest, with offsetting amounts
recognized as contributed
Equipment
and
signage
189,973
107,054
82,919
Equipment
and
signage
189,973
107,054
82,919
surplus. When the options are exercised, the proceeds received by the Company, together with
the
Fencing
18,851
470
18
Fencing
18,851
470
18381
381
related amount in contributed surplus are added to share capital. Forfeited or expired options are
put
Tenant
improvements
1,758,744
529,048
1,229,696
Tenant
1,758,744
529,048
1,229,696
back
intoimprovements
the pool of available stock options for future
grants.
$$29,761,654
$$ 3,198,938
$$26,562,716
29,761,654
3,198,938
26,562,716
3.
Revenue producing properties
Accumulated
Accumulated
Net
Accumulated
Net
2007
Amortization
Book
2008
Cost
Amortization
Book
2007
Cost
Amortization
BookValue
Value
Land
Land
Buildings
Buildings
Parking
Parkinglots
lots
Equipment
Equipmentand
andsignage
signage
Tenant
Fencing
Tenantimprovements
improvements
Tenant improvements

2007

4,503,982
$$ 7,991,448
4,503,982
11,546,635
11,546,635
18,540,144
514,453
1,262,494
514,453
189,973
189,973
1,083,652
18,851
1,083,652
1,758,744
$$17,838,695
17,838,695
$ 29,761,654

Cost

$$
-1,966,008
1,966,008
2,398,382
122,145
163,984
122,145
86,324
107,054
86,324
347,698
470
347,698
529,048
$$ 2,522,175
2,522,175
$ 3,198,938
Accumulated
Amortization

4,503,982
$$ 7,991,448
4,503,982
9,580,627
9,580,627
16,141,762
392,308
1,098,510
392,308
103,649
82,919
103,649
735,954
18 381
735,954
1,229,696
$$15,316,520
15,316,520
$ 26,562,716
Net
Book Value
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4.

Property under development

During the current year, the build to suit project that was started in the prior year and recorded as
property under development was completed in July of 2008. The tenant, PowerComm Inc., took
occupancy at that date. All of the project costs to the date of occupancy were removed from property
under development and transferred to revenue producing properties.

2007

Cost

Land
Construction costs to September 30, 2007

5.

$ 1,984,770
360,011
$ 2,344,781

Accumulated
Amortization
$

-

$

Net
Book Value
$ 1,984,770
360,011
$ 2,344,781

Land held for development

Land held for development in the west end of Edmonton totals 6.43 acres. Carrying costs on the land
include property taxes of $32,248 (2007 - $26,460) which are capitalized until the land becomes a revenue
producing property.
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6.

Gain on sale of properties

In the prior year, the Company completed an agreement to sell two of its revenue producing properties
for gross cash proceeds of $5,425,000. The sales resulted in a gain of $2,946,968.

7.

Deferred leasing costs
Cost

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Book Value

2008

Leasing costs

$ 1,360,532

$ 560,562

$ 799,970

2007

Leasing costs

$

$ 425,229

$ 533,801

8.

959,030

Capital assets

2008
Furniture and fixtures
Computer equipment and software
Vault and cage
Vehicle
Leaseholds
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Cost
$

74,743
146,284
67,204
20,340
54,214
$ 362,785

Accumulated
Amortization
$

$

25,632
62,196
32,757
11,868
26,338
158,792

Net
Book Value
$

49,111
84,088
34,447
8,472
27,876
$ 203,993
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8.

Capital assets (cont’d)

2007

Cost

Furniture and fixtures
Computer equipment and software
Vault and cage
Vehicle
Leaseholds

9.

$

62,247
105,330
67,204
20,340
54,214
$ 309,335

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Book Value

$

$

15,147
33,703
24,145
8,238
19,370
100,603

47,100
71,627
43,059
12,102
34,844
$ 208,732

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Book Value

$

Intangible assets
Cost

2008

Licenses

$ 579,197

$

152,765

$ 426,432

2007

Licenses

$ 579,197

$

94,845

$ 484,352
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10.

Bank indebtedness
2008

Operating lines of credit
Imperial Equities Inc.
Imperial Distributors Canada Inc.

$ 1,610,450
55,648
$ 1,666,098

2007
$

767,973
$ 767,973

Imperial Equities Inc. has an operating line of credit for general business purposes with a limit of
$2,000,000. The line of credit bears interest at prime plus 1.0% and is secured by two specific revenue
producing properties with a net book value of $3,323,905.
Imperial Distributors Canada Inc. has an operating line of credit with a limit of $1,500,000. This loan bears
interest at prime plus 1.25% and is secured by a general security agreement, a general assignment of book
debt and inventory, as well as a corporate guarantee provided by Imperial Equities Inc. in the amount of
$1,500,000. Subsequent to year end, the Company renewed its line of credit which included an increase
in the interest rate to prime plus 1.75%.
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11.

Mortgages
Maturity
Date

May 1, 2009
Nov 1, 2010
May 1, 2009
Jan 1, 2012
Nov 1, 2011
Apr 1, 2012
Sep 1, 2012
Sep 1, 2009
Aug 1, 2010
Oct 1, 2013
Aug 1, 2013

Rate
6.19%
4.71%
6.19%
4.94%
4.97%
5.20%
5.81%
5.78%
4.40%
5.385%
5.782%

Monthly
Balance
Balance
Payments Sep. 30 2008 Sep. 30 2007
$ 8,277
14,695
25,634
8,636
12,704
15,169
12,449
13,202
17,810
12,117
62,134

Less current portion:
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NBV of the
Underlying Security

$ 582,824
1,634,849
1,002,669
1,013,637
1,481,883
1,776,425
1,435,036
1,291,696
1,983,550
1,500,000
7,473,576

644,465
1,732,450
1,241,033
1,066,295
1,559,347
1,864,583
1,500,000
1,373,780
2,107,828
-

$ 1,772,275
2,999,191
1,551,630
715,377
781,175
1,526,758
1,027,171
1,944,859
2,706,371
2,656,992
8,880,915

$ 21,176,145

$ 13,089,781

$ 26,562,714

Lender
CWB
CIBC
CWB
CIBC
Manulife
CIBC
Manulife
Mfr. Life
CIBC
RBC
CIBC

(3,795,996)
(887,212)
$ 17,380,149 $ 12,202,569

The above mortgages are repayable in blended monthly payments of interest and principal. The
scheduled amount of principal repayments in each of the next five years is as follows:
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

$

$

3,795,996
2,691,691
2,197,096
4,095,914
8,395,448
21,176,145

The security pledged for each mortgage is limited to that mortgage. The President of the Company has
personally guaranteed two of the mortgages with a combined principal balance at September 30, 2008 of
$1,585,493 (2007 - $1,885,498). No fees were paid, or will be paid for the guarantees.
12.

Debentures

The subordinated debentures in the amount of $330,000 (2007 - $330,000) are held on a month to month
basis and bear interest at an annual rate of 8% (2007 – 8%) as negotiated by the parties. Interest is paid
monthly. The debentures are due on demand and are unsecured.
13.

Other financing

During the year, the Company received interim short term project financing from numerous lenders in the
amount of $2,950,000. Of the $2,950,000 received, $2,450,000 was received from related parties as
disclosed in Note 19. The remaining $500,000 was received from a private lender. All of the lenders
received interest on their loans equal to 8% per annum with the exception of a $2,000,000 related party
loan which incurred interest at a rate of 1% per month.
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13.

Other financing (cont’d)

Of the $2,950,000 received, all of the money was repaid during the year with accumulated interest at the
stated rates when the Company received conventional mortgage financing on the build to suit project
described in Note 4. The balance owing at September 30, 2008 in the amount of $1,500,000 (2007 $1,500,000) is owed to a company owned by an immediate family member of a director and significant
shareholder of the Company. The loan bears interest at 8% per annum and is paid monthly. The loan is
unsecured with no set terms of repayment.
In the prior year, the Company received other financing from lenders in the amount of $1,350,000. Of the
$1,350,000 received, $850,000 was from a company owned by a director and significant shareholder of
the Company, $450,000 was received from a significant shareholder of the Company and $50,000 was
received from an unrelated private party. This additional financing was unsecured with a stated interest of
8% per annum as negotiated between the parties with no fixed terms for repayment in the course of
normal business operations. Of the total other financing received, $1,150,000 was repaid with interest to
the company owned by a director of the Company, $450,000 was repaid with interest to a shareholder,
and the remaining $50,000 was repaid with interest to an unrelated private party.
The above transactions occurred within the course of normal business operations at rates negotiated
between the parties involved. All related party transactions and balances have been recorded at the
exchange amount. For additional related party information see Note 19.
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14.

Income taxes

a)

Provision for income taxes

Income tax expense differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory provincial and federal
income tax rates to the respective years’ earnings before income taxes. These differences result from the
following items:
2008
Expected income tax expense (recovery)
at 30.16%
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
Income tax rate adjustments
Non-taxable portion of capital gains
Other

2007

$ (53,714)

$ 729,906

(106,324)
24,769
$ (135,269)

(613)
(535,227)
27,444
$ 221,510
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Equities
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totothe
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Consolidated
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2008
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14.
14.
14.

Income
Income
Incometaxes
taxes
taxes(cont’d)
(cont’d)
(cont’d)

b)
b)
b)

Future
Future
Futureincome
income
incometaxes
taxes
taxes

The
The
Thetax
tax
taxeffects
effects
effectsof
of
oftemporary
temporary
temporarydifferences
differences
differencesthat
that
thatgive
give
giverise
rise
riseto
to
tothe
the
theCompany’s
Company’s
Company’sfuture
future
futuretax
tax
taxbalances
balances
balancesare
are
areas
as
as
follows:
follows:
follows:
2008
2008
2008
Currentassets
assets
Current
Current
assets
Shareissue
issueand
andfinancing
financingcosts
costs
Share
Share
issue
and
financing
costs
Non-currentassets
assets
Non-current
Non-current
assets
Losscarry
carryforward
forward
Loss
Loss
carry
forward
Shareissue
issueand
andfinancing
financingcosts
costs
Share
Share
issue
and
financing
costs
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Non-currentliabilities
liabilities
Non-current
Non-current
liabilities
Bookcost
costof
ofrevenue
revenueproducing
producingproperties
propertiesin
Book
Book
cost
of
revenue
producing
properties
inin
excessof
oftax
taxcost
cost
excess
excess
of
tax
cost
Straight-linerent
rent
Straight-line
Straight-line
rent
Deferredleasing
leasingcosts
costs
Deferred
Deferred
leasing
costs
Intangibles
Intangibles
Intangibles

2007
2007
2007
Currentassets
assets
Current
Current
assets
Shareissue
issueand
andfinancing
financingcosts
costs
Share
Share
issue
and
financing
costs
Non-currentassets
assets
Non-current
Non-current
assets
Losscarry
carryforward
forward
Loss
Loss
carry
forward
Shareissue
issueand
andfinancing
financingcosts
costs
Share
Share
issue
and
financing
costs

Non-currentliabilities
liabilities
Non-current
Non-current
liabilities
Bookcost
costof
ofrevenue
revenueproducing
producingproperties
propertiesin
Book
Book
cost
of
revenue
producing
properties
inin
excessof
oftax
taxcost
cost
excess
excess
of
tax
cost
Bookcost
costof
ofcapital
capitalassets
assetsin
excessof
oftax
taxcost
cost
Book
Book
cost
of
capital
assets
ininexcess
excess
of
tax
cost
Straight-linerent
rent
Straight-line
Straight-line
rent
Deferredleasing
leasingcosts
costs
Deferred
Deferred
leasing
costs
Intangibles
Intangibles
Intangibles
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IEI
IEI
IEI

IDCI
IDCI
IDCI

5,993
$$$ 5,993
5,993

$$$

--31,517
31,517
31,517
31,517
$$$ 31,517
31,517

507,964
507,964
507,964
--507,964
$$$ 507,964
507,964

507,964
507,964
507,964
31,517
31,517
31,517
539,480
$$$ 539,480
539,480

548,179
$$$548,179
548,179
75,285
75,285
75,285
212,047
212,047
212,047
111,138
111,138
111,138
946,649
$$$946,649
946,649

12,457
$$$ 12,457
12,457
------12,457
$$$ 12,457
12,457

560,636
$$$ 560,636
560,636
75,285
75,285
75,285
212,047
212,047
212,047
111,138
111,138
111,138
959,106
$$$ 959,106
959,106

IEI
IEI
IEI

---

CONSOLIDATED
CONSOLIDATED
CONSOLIDATED

IDCI
IDCI
IDCI

$$$

5,993
5,993
5,993

CONSOLIDATED
CONSOLIDATED
CONSOLIDATED

10,473
$$$10,473
10,473

$$$

---

10,473
$$$ 10,473
10,473

--19,095
19,095
19,095
19,095
$$$ 19,095
19,095

523,964
523,964
523,964
--523,964
$$$ 523,964
523,964

523,964
523,964
523,964
19,095
19,095
19,095
543,059
$$$ 543,059
543,059

430,727
$$$430,727
430,727
--73,671
73,671
73,671
156,837
156,837
156,837
139,834
139,834
139,834
801,069
$$$801,069
801,069

$$$

--2,612
2,612
2,612
------2,612
$$$ 2,612
2,612

430,727
$$$430,727
430,727
2,612
2,612
2,612
73,671
73,671
73,671
156,837
156,837
156,837
139,834
139,834
139,834
803,681
$$$803,681
803,681
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14.

Income taxes (cont’d)

c)

Non-capital losses

The Company has non-capital losses of $1,886,587 available to reduce future taxable income. These losses
have been recognized as a future tax asset in these financial statements. If not utilized these losses will
expire as follows:
2014
2025
2026
2027
2028

15.

Share capital

a)

Authorized:

$ 629,624
63,391
411,154
689,077
93,341
$1,886,587

Unlimited number of common shares
b)

Issued and outstanding

2008
Balance at September 30, 2007
Stock options exercised (Note 17)
Balance at September 30, 2008

2007
Balance at September 30, 2006
Shares cancelled during the year
Stock options exercised (Note 17)
Balance at September 30, 2007
c)

53
Number
of shares

Cost

9,106,342
100,000
9,206,342

$ 3,917,086
127,000
$ 4,044,086

Number
of shares

Cost

9,006,842
(500)
100,000
9,106,342

$ 3,790,261
(175)
127,000
$ 3,917,086

Repurchased shares for cancellation

The Company received approval from the TSX Venture Exchange to purchase up to 455,317 common
shares representing 5% of the outstanding shares under a normal course issuer bid, expiring June 15,
2009. During the year the Company purchased 48,400 shares for total cash consideration of $98,116. Of
the 48,400 shares repurchased, all are carried at cost and shown as a deduction from shareholders’ equity
until such time that they are cancelled.
During the prior year, the Company cancelled 500 shares that had been purchased at September 30, 2006
for total cash consideration of $565. The excess of the cost over the stated value of shares cancelled
during the prior year of $390 has been recorded as a charge to retained earnings.
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16.

Stock-based compensation plan

The Company has established a Stock Option Plan for the benefit of its directors, management and key
employees. The Board of Directors may designate which directors, management and key employees of
the Company are to be granted options. Under the Stock Option Plan, the Company may grant options,
which vest immediately, to acquire a maximum number of common shares equal to 10% of its total issued
and outstanding common shares. On August 11, 2005, the Company received regulatory approval to issue
400,000 stock options to its directors enabling each holder the right to acquire one common share for
each option held. At the time of grant, the options had a weighted average fair value of $0.27. On May 21,
2008 the Company issued an additional 100,000 options to a director enabling the holder the right to
acquire one common share for each option held. At the time of the grant, the options had a weighted
average fair value of $0.31.
The following table reflects the activity under the stock option plan:
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Balance at September 30, 2005
Granted during the year
Exercised
Forfeited and expired
Balance at September 30, 2006
Granted during the year
Exercised
Forfeited and expired
Balance at September 30, 2007
Granted during the year
Exercised
Forfeited and expired
Balance at September 30, 2008
Balance at September 30, 2008

Options Outstanding

Exercise Price

400,000
400,000
(100,000)
300,000
100,000
(100,000)
200,000
100,000

$ 1.00
$ 1.00
$ 1.00
$ 1.00
$ 1.75
$ 1.00
$ 1.00
$ 1.75

Remaining Life (Yrs)
5
4
3
2
2
2

During the year, a director of the Company exercised his right to acquire one common share for each
option held. Proceeds of $100,000 were received in exchange for the issuance of 100,000 common shares.
In determining the fair value of stock options granted on May 21, 2008, the following estimates were used
in the Black-Scholes option pricing model; a risk-free interest rate of 3.45%, expected life of 2.22 years,
volatility of the trading price was estimated at 25% and no expected dividends. Total compensation cost
of $31,720 was recognized as compensation expense for the granting of the options with a corresponding
increase to contributed surplus.
In determining the fair value of stock options granted on August 11, 2005, the following estimates were
used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model; a risk-free interest rate of 3.5%, expected life of 5 years,
volatility of the trading price was estimated at 10% and no expected dividends. Total compensation cost
of $108,000 was recognized as an expense from the granting of the options with a corresponding increase
to contributed surplus.

IMPERIAL EQUITIES INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2008

Imperial
Imperial
Equities
Equities
Inc. Inc.
Notes
Notes
to the
toConsolidated
the Consolidated
Financial
Financial
Statements
Statements
September
September
30, 2008
30, 2008

______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
17. 17.Contributed
Contributed
surplus
surplus
20082008
Balance,
beginning
of year
Balance,
beginning
of year
Carrying
of options
exercised
during
the year
Carrying
valuevalue
of options
exercised
during
the year
Stock-based
compensation
recognition
Stock-based
compensation
recognition
of value
fair value
of stock
options
granted
of fair
of stock
options
granted
to: to:
-Employees,
officers
directors
-Employees,
officers
and and
directors
Balance,
of year
Balance,
end end
of year

20072007

$ 81,000
$ 81,000
(27,000)
(27,000)

$ 108,000
$ 108,000
(27,000)
(27,000)

31,720
31,720
$ 85,720
$ 85,720

- $ 81,000
$ 81,000

During
the year,
the right
to acquire
common
share
for each
option
exercised
a director
During
the year,
the right
to acquire
one one
common
share
for each
option
heldheld
was was
exercised
by aby
director
of corporation.
the corporation.
A total
of 100,000
shares
issued.
carrying
of options
the options
exercised
of the
A total
of 100,000
shares
werewere
issued.
The The
carrying
valuevalue
of the
exercised
was was
recorded
a reduction
of contributed
the contributed
surplus
account
a corresponding
increase
to share
capital.
recorded
as a as
reduction
of the
surplus
account
withwith
a corresponding
increase
to share
capital.

Earnings
per share
18. 18. Earnings
per share
computation
of basic
earnings
per share
has been
calculated
the weighted
average
number
The The
computation
of basic
earnings
per share
has been
calculated
usingusing
the weighted
average
number
of of
common
shares
outstanding
during
the year.
Earnings
per share
a diluted
calculated
common
shares
outstanding
during
the year.
Earnings
per share
on aon
diluted
basisbasis
havehave
beenbeen
calculated
the “treasury
method”.
usingusing
the “treasury
method”.
The following
describes
the computation
of basic
diluted
earnings
per share:
The following
tabletable
describes
the computation
of basic
and and
diluted
earnings
per share:

Numerator
Numerator
Net earnings
Net earnings
and comprehensive
and comprehensive
income
income
Denominator
Denominator
BasicBasic
weighted
weighted
average
average
number
number
of of
common
common
shares
shares
Effect
Effect
of dilutive
of dilutive
stockstock
options
options
Diluted
Diluted
weighted
weighted
average
average
number
number
of of
common
common
shares
shares
(Loss)
(Loss)
earnings
earnings
per share
per share
– basic
– basic
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20082008

20072007

$ (42,857)
$ (42,857)

$ 2,050,907
$ 2,050,907

9,134,018
9,134,018
118,986
118,986

9,063,054
9,063,054
276,465
276,465

9,253,003
9,253,003
$ $ (.01)(.01)

9,339,519
9,339,519
$ $
.23 .23

$

$

(Loss)
(Loss)
earnings
earnings
per share
per share
– diluted
– diluted

$ (.01)(.01)

$

.22 .22

19. 19. Related
Related
partyparty
transactions
transactions
Related
Related
partyparty
transactions
transactions
are as
arefollows:
as follows:
20082008
PaidPaid
to companies
to companies
owned
owned
or controlled
or controlled
by aby
director,
a director,
majority
majority
shareholder
shareholder
and and
officer
officer
Property
Property
management
management
and and
operations
operations
Leasehold
Leasehold
improvements
improvements
contracts
contracts
Leasing
Leasing
and and
real real
estate
estate
commissions
commissions
Marketing
Marketing
and and
consulting
consulting
fees fees

Amounts
Amounts
payable
payable
at year
at year
end end

20072007

$ 243,955
$ 243,955
550,000
550,000
232,571
232,571
57,288
57,288
$ 1,083,814
$ 1,083,814

$

$

$247,126
247,126
- 378,354
378,354
46,992
46,992
$672,472
672,472

$

$

103,223
$ 103,223

$ 56,554
56,554
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19.

Related party transactions (cont’d)

Property management and operations expenditures were paid to a company owned 100% by a director,
majority shareholder and officer and include building and ground maintenance, collection of rents and
accounting. Also included are labour costs associated with tenant improvements. These amounts are
recoverable from the tenants, under the terms of the related lease agreements.
Leasehold improvement contracts were paid to a company owned 100% by a director, majority
shareholder and officer and related to large scale tenant improvements required to facilitate the needs of
a new tenant for the property purchased in Fort Saskatchewan, and renovations to increase the size of a
current tenant’s lease space. Marketing and consulting fees were paid to this same company.
Leasing and real estate commissions were paid to a company managed and controlled by a director,
majority shareholder and officer that is also owned 100% by a member of the immediate family of this
party. Fees and commissions paid are in line with current industry standards and are comparable to
similar transactions undertaken by the Company with unrelated parties.
The above transactions took place at amounts which in management’s opinion approximate normal
commercial rates and terms and occurred in the normal course of operations. The transactions have been
recorded at the exchange amount. The above noted fees are for services that would not otherwise be
provided by employees of the Company.
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2008
Other financing from a company owned by a director, majority shareholder and officer

2007

Balance payable, beginning of year
Advances to Imperial Equities Inc.
Repayments of advances
Balance payable, end of year

$

350,000
(350,000)
$
-

$

Interest paid on advances

$

$

2,915

300,000
850,000
(1,150,000)
$
22,189

Other financing from a company which is owned by a member of the immediate
family of a director and significant shareholder
Balance payable, beginning of year
Advances to Imperial Equities Inc.
Repayments of advances
Balance payable, end of year

$ 1,500,000
2,000,000
(2,000,000)
$ 1,500,000

$ 1,500,000
$ 1,500,000

Interest paid on advances

$ 181,315

$

IMPERIAL EQUITIES INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2008

120,000

Imperial
ImperialEquities
EquitiesInc.
Inc.
Notes
Notestotothe
theConsolidated
ConsolidatedFinancial
FinancialStatements
Statements
September
September30,
30,2008
2008

______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
19.
19.

Related
Relatedparty
partytransactions
transactions(cont’d)
(cont’d)

Other
Otherfinancing
financingfrom
fromaadirector,
director,officer
officerand
andmajority
majorityshareholder
shareholder
Balance
Balancepayable,
payable,beginning
beginningofofyear
year
Advances
Advancesto
toImperial
ImperialEquities
EquitiesInc.
Inc.
Repayments
Repaymentsofofadvances
advances
Balance
Balancepayable,
payable,end
endofofyear
year

$$

-100,000
100,000
(100,000)
(100,000)
$$
--

$$

-----

Interest
Interestpaid
paidon
onadvances
advances

$$

$$

--

142
142

$$

Advances
Advances to
to the
the Company
Company are
are used
used for
for interim
interim financing
financing and
and are
are measured
measured atat amortized
amortized cost.
cost. The
The
advances
advancesare
areunsecured
unsecuredwith
withno
noset
setterm
termofofrepayment
repaymentand
andbear
bearinterest
interestatataarate
rateofof8%
8%per
perannum
annumor
or1%
1%
per
permonth
month(see
(seeNote
Note13),
13),which
whichare
arethe
therates
ratesthat
thatwere
werenegotiated
negotiatedby
bythe
theparties
partiesininthe
thenormal
normalcourse
courseofof
operations.
operations. The
Theabove
abovetransactions
transactionshave
havebeen
beenrecorded
recordedatatthe
theexchange
exchangeamount.
amount. Advances
Advancesare
arerepaid
repaid
with
withinterest
interestwhen
whenthe
theCompany
Companyno
nolonger
longerrequires
requiresthe
thefunds.
funds.
Paid
Paidto
todirectors
directors
Interest
Interestand
andrepayment
repaymentofofdebenture
debenture
Directors’
Directors’fees
fees

$$
$$

-8,500
8,500
8,500
8,500

$$

51,732
51,732
8,000
8,000
$$ 59,732
59,732

Interest
Interestand
andthe
therepayment
repaymentofofthe
thedebenture
debenturewere
weremeasured
measuredatatthe
theexchange
exchangeamount
amountestablished
establishedand
and
agreed
agreedto
toby
bythe
therelated
relatedparties.
parties.Directors
Directorsare
arepaid
paidaafee
feefor
forattending
attendingdirectors’
directors’meetings.
meetings.The
Thefees
feesare
are
measured
measuredatatthe
theexchange
exchangeamount
amountestablished
establishedand
andagreed
agreedto
toby
bythe
therelated
relatedparties.
parties. These
Thesetransactions
transactions
occurred
occurredininthe
thenormal
normalcourse
courseofofoperations.
operations.
Paid
Paidto
toaapartnership
partnershipof
ofwhich
whichaadirector
directorisisaapartner
partner
Legal
Legalfees
fees

$$ 47,307
47,307

$$ 75,193
75,193

Legal
Legal fees
fees paid
paid were
were inin the
the normal
normal course
course ofof operations
operations and
and are
are measured
measured atat the
the exchange
exchange amount
amount
established
establishedand
andagreed
agreedto
toby
bythe
therelated
relatedparties.
parties.
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20.

Segmented Information
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$5,975,481

$

Identifiable segment assets

Expenditures for segment capital assets,
property under development, and
revenue producing property
$

Expenditures for segment capital assets,
property under development, and
94,894revenue producing
$ 9,610,427
property $ 1,021,613

$5,065,536Identifiable segment
$29,513,821
assets $21,553,528

-Property operations
793,485
693,066
6,629,616Cost of sales of pharmaceuticals
Interest on mortgages, debentures and
66,505 other financing 936,782
900,252
48,986Amortization
812,097
909,899
847,314Selling and administrative
220,788(Note 23)
170,039
Segment (loss) earnings
from operations
(653,575)
604,551
345,165
-Gain on sale of properties 2,946,968
-General corporate expenses
Income tax (recovery)
expense 395,865
(174,355)
(273,298)
$ (479,220)
$ 877,849
2,896,268
Net (loss) earnings
and comp.$ income

$ 3,367,703 $ 3,018,422

Pharmaceuticals
Consolidated

$

$ 9,663,877
$ 1,116,507
53,450
$ 94,894

$35,489,302
$26,619,064
$5,975,481
$5,065,536

48,792985,57466,505966,757
116,109928,20648,986958,885
759,975980,763
847,314
1,017,353
(282,648)
(653,575)
321,903
(308,410)
2,946,968
-500,029
-366,141
138,029
(174,355)
(135,269)
221,510
$
(42,857)
$ 2,050,907
$ (420,677)
$ (479,220)

-793,485
-693,066
9,810,143
6,629,616
9,810,143
6,629,616

$ 10,452,371
$ 13,820,074
$ 6,938,846
$ 9,957,267

Current Year
Current Year
Prior Year
Prior Year
(12 months)
(12 months)
(12 months)
(12 months)

$ 9,610,427 $ 1,021,61

$29,513,821 $21,553,52

$

693,06

936,782
900,25
812,097
909,89
220,788
170,03
604,551
345,16
2,946,96
(273,298)
395,86
877,849 $ 2,896,26

793,485
-

$ 3,367,703 $ 3,018,42

Prior Ye
(12 mont

Real Estate
Current Year
(12 months)

An estimated income tax recovery of $155,008 (2007 - $117,165) related
Antoestimated
corporateincome
costs were
tax recovery
recognized
of $155,008
during the
(2007
year- $117,165) related to corporate costs were recognized d
and included in the real estate segment.
and included in the real estate segment.

53,450

48,792
116,109
759,975
(282,648)
138,029
$ (420,677)

9,810,143

$ 10,452,371 $ 6,938,846Revenue

Prior Year
(12 months)

Real Estate

Prior YearSeptember 30, Current Year
(12 months)
(12 months)

Pharmaceuticals
Current Year
(12 months)

Property operations
Cost of sales of pharmaceuticals
Interest on mortgages, debentures and
other financing
Amortization
Selling and administrative (Note 23)
Segment (loss) earnings from operations
Gain on sale of properties
General corporate expenses
Income tax (recovery) expense
Net (loss) earnings and comp. income

Revenue

September 30,

The Company operates in two key business segments; real estate andThe
pharmaceutical
Company operates
sales. Operating
in two keysegments
business segments;
are determined
real estate
basedand
on the
pharmaceutical
different types
sales.
of business
Operating seg
activities and the different economic environments they operate in. There
activities
are noand
intercompany
the differentsales
economic
or transfers.
environments
All of thethey
Company’s
operatesales
in. There
are within
are noCanada.
intercompany sales or transf

Segmented Information
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21.
21.

Supplemental
Supplementalconsolidated
consolidatedcash
cashflow
flowinformation
information
2008
2008

Change
Changeininnon-cash
non-cashoperating
operatingbalances
balances
Receivables
Receivables
Inventory
Inventory
Prepaid
Prepaidexpenses
expensesand
anddeposits
deposits
Payables
Payablesand
andaccruals
accruals
Income
Incometaxes
taxes
Security
Securitydeposits
depositsand
andother
other
Future
Futurerent
rentreceivable
receivable

2007
2007

$$ (549,491)
(549,491)
(80,890)
(80,890)
(72,851)
(72,851)
330,786
330,786
(751,302)
(751,302)
(197,176)
(197,176)
(30,350)
(30,350)
$$ (1,351,274)
(1,351,274)

$$ (824,041)
(824,041)
(1,261,354)
(1,261,354)
58,946
58,946
590,991
590,991
79,995
79,995
164,019
164,019
(125,930)
(125,930)
$$(1,317,374)
(1,317,374)

Interest
Interestpaid
paid

$$ 1,023,229
1,023,229

$$ 899,115
899,115

Income
Incometaxes
taxespaid
paid

$$

$$

22.
22.

492,940
492,940

314,038
314,038

Capital
Capitalrisk
riskmanagement
management

The
TheCompany
Companydefines
definescapital
capitalthat
thatititmanages
managesasasthe
theaggregate
aggregateofofits
itsshareholders’
shareholders’equity
equityand
andinterest
interest
bearing
bearingdebt.
debt.The
TheCompany’s
Company’sobjectives
objectiveswhen
whenmanaging
managingcapital
capitalare
aretotoensure
ensurethat
thatthe
theCompany
Companywill
will
continue
continueasasaagoing
goingconcern,
concern,sosothat
thatititcan
cansustain
sustaindaily
dailyoperations
operationsand
andprovide
provideadequate
adequatereturns
returnstotoits
its
shareholders.
shareholders.
The
TheCompany
Companyisissubject
subjecttotorisks
risksassociated
associatedwith
withdebt
debtfinancing,
financing,including
includingthe
thepossibility
possibilitythat
thatexisting
existing
mortgages
mortgagesmay
maynot
notbe
berefinanced,
refinanced,orormay
maynot
notbe
berefinanced
refinancedon
onasasfavorable
favorableterms
termsororwith
withinterest
interestrates
rates
asasfavorable
favorableasasthose
thoseofofthe
theexisting
existingdebt.
debt.The
TheCompany
Companymitigates
mitigatesthese
theserisks
risksby
byits
itscontinued
continuedefforts
effortstoto
stagger
staggerthe
thematurity
maturityprofile
profileofofits
itslong-term
long-termdebt,
debt,enhance
enhancethe
thevalue
valueofofits
itsreal
realestate
estateproperties,
properties,maintain
maintain
high
highoccupancy
occupancylevels.
levels.The
TheCompany
Companymanages
managesits
itscapital
capitalstructure
structureand
andmakes
makesadjustments
adjustmentstotoititininthe
thelight
light
ofofchanges
changesinineconomic
economicconditions
conditionsand
andthe
therisk
riskcharacteristics
characteristicsofofthe
theunderlying
underlyingassets.
assets.
Capital
CapitalStructure
Structure
As
Asatat

Mortgages
Mortgages
Bankindebtedness
indebtedness
Bank
Otherfinancing
financingand
anddebentures
debentures
Other
Less:cash
cashand
andcash
cashequivalents
equivalents
Less:
Netdebt
debt
Net
Equity
Equity

September
September30,
30,
2008
2008
21,176,145
$$21,176,145
1,666,098
1,666,098
1,830,000
1,830,000
(647,130)
(647,130)
24,025,113
24,025,113
8,333,575
8,333,575
32,358,688
$$32,358,688

September
September30,
30,
2007
2007
13,089,781
$$13,089,781
767,973
767,973
1,830,000
1,830,000
(1,481,590)
(1,481,590)
14,206,164
14,206,164
8,342,828
8,342,828
$22,548,992
$22,548,992

September30,
30,2008,
2008,the
theCompany
Companyhas
hascontinued
continuedtotomeet
meetall
allexternally
externallyimposed
imposedcapital
capitalrequirements
requirements
AtAtSeptember
whichititisissubject.
subject.
totowhich
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23.

Unusual item – bad debt expense

Included in selling and administrative expense in the prior year is $345,591 of bad debt expense related to
one party. During the current year, the Company received a consent judgment against the debtor and at
September 30, 2008, a total of $45,000 has been recovered. The uncertainty of receiving the balance in
full has caused the Company to only record a reversal of the bad debt equal to monies received. The
balance at September 30, 2008 of $300,591 remains as an allowance for doubtful accounts.
24.

Commitments

The Company’s subsidiary has a commitment under a lease agreement to make payments for its leased
premises. The leases expire June 30, 2010. Lease payments due to the terms of the leases are as follows:
2009
2010

$ 74,628
58,183
$ 132,811

The Company’s subsidiary has commitments under vehicle lease agreements with a related party to make
payments for leased vehicles used in the delivery of pharmaceuticals. The leases have expiry dates
between December 2008 and March 1, 2011. Lease payments for the current year are included in
operations in the related party transactions. Lease payments due to the terms of the leases are as follows:
2009
2010
2011

60

$ 12,950
8,750
3,500
$ 25,200

Imperial Equities Inc. has contracts in place with related parties described in Note 19. The contracts relate
to property management fees and asset management fees. Both contracts have been in place since 1999
and have been renewed on an annual basis with no changes to the terms. Contracts for vehicle leases are
in management’s opinion an approximation of normal commercial rates and terms.
25.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into agreements that include indemnities in favor
of third parties, such as engagement letters with advisors and consultants, distribution and service
agreements. The Company has also agreed to indemnify its directors and certain of its officers and
employees in accordance with the Company’s bylaws. Certain agreements do not contain any limits on
the Company’s liability and, therefore, it is not possible to estimate the Company’s potential liability
under these indemnities. Further the Company maintains insurance policies that may provide coverage
against certain claims under these indemnities.
26.

Financial instruments

The Company’s financial instruments include cash, restricted cash, receivables, bank indebtedness,
payables and accruals, other financing, debentures, security deposits and mortgages payable.
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26.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

The Company has classified cash and cash equivalents as held for trading measured at fair value. The
carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents and receivables approximate their fair value due to the
relatively short period to maturity. Receivables are classified as loans and receivables and are measured
at their amortized cost.
Bank indebtedness, payables, other financing, debentures, mortgages and security deposits are classified
as other financial liabilities and measured at amortized cost. The carrying value of bank indebtedness,
payables approximate their fair value because of the near term maturity of those instruments. The fair
value of mortgages payable are based on discounted future cash flows using rates that reflect current
rates for similar investments with similar terms and conditions. The estimated fair value of mortgages
payable as at September 30, 2008 is $21,228,993 (2007 - $12,860,225). The fair value of debentures and
related party financing to the Company is not readily available as there is no secondary market for these
financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature as current interest rates are selected from
a range of potentially acceptable rates and accordingly, other fair value estimates are possible.
Financial risk management
The Company’s activities expose it to financial risks including, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity
risk. Management reviews these risks on an ongoing basis to ensure that the risks are appropriately
managed.
Credit risk
Credit risk for Imperial Equities Inc. arises from the possibility that tenants may experience financial
difficulty and be unable to fulfill their lease commitments. The Company mitigates the risk of credit loss
with a policy of credit assessment for all new lessees and by limiting its exposure to any one tenant.
The Company is exposed to increased credit risk from customers in its subsidiary’s operations as the
Company continues to grow and increase the customer base. At September 30, 2008, two accounts have
each generated more than 10% of the total volume of sales contributing $5,278,894 (51%) of the
Company’s $10,425,951 total sales for the year. Sales related to each customer range between 21-30% of
total sales. This risk is minimized as forty one per cent of these sales are to a government authority. The
other major customer has established their credit line and continues to pay within their terms.
The Company has a credit policy of reviewing all customer orders for approval and monthly monitoring of
accounts receivable. Trade receivables in IDCI are down $81,000 at September 30, 2008 even though sales
have increased 51%. IDCI’s strategy of aggressive prompt payment discounts for customers has increased
the current cash flows and partially alleviated the need to utilize the line of credit. Of the $1,945,629
trade receivables outstanding in the subsidiary, 46% are current, 27% are 31-60 days and 25% are 61-90
days past due and 2% are over 90. In the real estate segment, 32% of the total $187,525 outstanding is
current, and the balance is due from one customer in the 31-60 days.
Trade accounts receivable in the Company that have been deemed uncollectable are expensed as bad
debts and charged to net income in the period that the account is determined to be doubtful. During the
year, a total of $5,831 was expensed as a bad debt. Estimates for the allowance for doubtful accounts are
determined on a customer-by-customer evaluation of collectability at each reporting date. As at
September 30, 2008 the Company has recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts in the amount of
$306,591. Of this balance, $300,591 remains under litigation.
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Sine Chadi

Kevin Lynch

CEO & Chairman of the Board
Imperial Equities Inc.

Director

From day one Sine has been the principal driver
of Imperial Equities and has overseen all the day
to day aspects of Imperial’s growth, development
and management. He brings more than 30 years
of professional real estate experience to Imperial
and is the founder and principal shareholder of
several other companies involved in real estate
sales, asset management, property management
and mortgage financing. Sine is an active
community leader and on the Board of Trustees
of the Glenrose Hospital Foundation as well as
an enthusiastic organizer and fundraiser for a
number of community groups, charities and not
for profit associations. Sine was a Member of the
Legislative Assembly of Alberta from 1993-1997.
Here he represented his Caucus on a number of
the Legislature’s economic development, public
accounts and treasury committees.

Kevin is a corporate lawyer with one of Edmonton's
most prestigious business law firms. As a corporate
specialist, Kevin focuses his practice on corporate/
commercial law, including securities, acquisitions
and divestitures, commercial real estate and
financing matters. In addition to his position on
Imperial's board, Kevin has acted as Corporate
Secretary and director for TSE listed companies.
He is also very active in his community as a past St.
Albert School Board Trustee; former director of the
foundation for Newman Theological College and St.
Joseph's Seminary; former president of the Friends
of St. Albert Swimming Society and former director
of the Olympian Swim Club. Kevin is presently a
director of The Inspections Group Inc., a private
Alberta corporation.
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Diane Buchanan

Dr. Dennis Modry

Director

Director

Diane has an extensive background in real estate
and business operations. She was the first woman
Director elected to the Edmonton Real Estate
Board in 1984 and among other developments,
developed the Union Bank Inn in 1997, Alberta’s
first 4 ½ star Inn. Diane is active in the community
and a passionate supporter of various children and
women’s charitable organizations. She is a Rotary
member and in 2001 was awarded the Edmonton
Chamber of Commerce “Small Business Owner
of the Year” award. Diane currently is the CEO of
Advanced Panel Products, the largest polyurethane
production plant in Alberta, supplying insulated
panels to the building construction industry.

A cardiovascular and thoracic surgeon at the University of Alberta Hospital, Dr. Dennis Modry is a
major part of the growing institutional excellence and
international stature of the University of Alberta as
a centre of medical research and treatment. He was
instrumental in establishing Western Canada’s first
heart and lung transplant program at the U of A and
he performed its first transplant in 1985. Dr. Modry’s
continued involvement has been instrumental in
creating Canada’s most successful transplantation
program. This significant achievement has been
only one part of a distinguished and much awarded
medical career. Today in addition to medical and
academic pursuits, he is also influencing his profession
as President of the AMA section of Cardiovascular
and Thoracic Surgery and Editorial Board member of
the Journal of Heart and Lung and Thoracic Surgery.
He is active in administrative matters at the University
of Alberta Hospital and is keenly interested in issues
of health system reform. His unique vantage point
into the health system, provides Imperial with
invaluable expertise to help guide the growth and
development of Imperial Distributors as part of the
overall company.
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#406 Sun Life Place
10123 - 99 Street
Edmonton, Alberta T5J 3H1
Phone (780) 702-1270
Fax (780) 408-3382

Bankers
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce
Commercial Banking Centre
10102 Jasper Avenue
Edmonton, Alberta T5J 1W5
HSBC Bank Canada
10561 Jasper Avenue
Edmonton, Alberta T5J 1Z4

Solicitors
Bennett Jones LLP
1000 ATCO Centre,
10035 - 105 Street
Edmonton, Alberta T5J 3T2
Phone (780) 945-4774
Fax (780) 421-7951

Annual Meeting
Date: March 18th, 2009
Time: 2:00pm
Place: Conference Room A
Concourse Level Scotia Place
10060 Jasper Avenue
Edmonton, Alberta

STRENGTH THROUGH DIVERSITY
2OO8 ANNUAL REPORT
1905 Scotia 2, Scotia Place
10060 Jasper Avenue
Edmonton, Alberta T5J 3R8
Phone (780) 424-7227
Fax (780) 425-6379
e-mail: askus@imperialequities.com
www.imperialequities.com
TSX Venture Exchange

Trading Symbol: IEI
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